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As of January 30, 1991, the company was 
comprised of two separate business groups and 
n portant equity interests as shown fn thT 

following table: ine 

-Ascription of Business 

General Merchandise 

Kniart Discount department 
stores 

Specialty Retail 

1 V^rehouse*6^^ M<±Ib?^ Wanehouse 

Builders Square Warehouse home 

improvement stores 
Pay Less Drug Stores Super drug stores 

Waldenbooks Reuil ^ s(ores 

1 he Sports Authority Sporting goods mega 

stores 

«- 

PACE Membership 
Warehouse 

Builders Square 

Pay Less Drugstores 

Waldenbooks 

The Sports Authority 

Equity Interests 

Meldisco subsidiaries of 
Melville Corporation Footwe 

Coles Myer Ltd. Largest 
Footwear retailer 

OfficeMax 

Largest retailer in 
Australia 

Office supply ware¬ 
house stores 
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Kmart customers and their families are the inspiration 

for Kmarts vision-they are what drives us to work 

harder and better, /leginning on page 5, a look at 

Kmart s vision and how it affects everything we do. 

This report is printed on recycled paper. 

Financial Highlights 

($ Millions, except 
per-share data) 1990 

% 

Change 
7c 

1989 Change 1988 

Sales $32,070 8.6 $29,533 8.2 $27,301 
Net Earnings before 

Restructuring Charge $ 756 1.5 $ 745 (7.2) $ 803 
Net Income $ 756 134.3 $ 323 (59.8) $ 803 
Per Common Share: 

Net Earnings before 

Restructuring Charge $ 3.78 1.9 $ 3.71 (7.2) $ 4.00 
Net Income $ 3.78 134.8 $ 1.61 (59.8) $ 4.00 
Cash Dividends 

Declared $ 1.72 4.9 $ 1.64 24.2 $ 1.32 
Return on Beginning Assets 5.87c 2.7% * 7.27c 
Return on Beginning 

Investment 11.47c 6.87c * 13.67c 

Return on Beginning 

Shareholders’ Equity 15.27c 6.47c * 18.27c 

General Merchandise Stores 2,350 2,361 2,307 

Specialty Retail Stores 1,830 1.898 1,775 

* Excluding the restructuring charge, the returns on beginning assets, investment and shareholders* equity in 1989 
were6.1%, 11.8% and 14.9%, respectively. 

(Billions) 
$35 

Sales 
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To Our Shareholders J 

n 1990, net earnings were $756 million, 
or $3.78 per share, compared with the prior 
year's earnings of $323 million, or $1.61 per 
share, which included a pretax provision of 
$640 million the company established to 
cover all expenses associated with an expand¬ 
ed and accelerated Kmart store opening, 

enlargement, relocation and refurbishment 
program and other non-recurring charges. 
Excluding the provision, earnings in 1989 
were $745 million, or $3.71 per share. Total 
sales increased 8.6% to $32.07 billion for 
the 52-week year ended January 30, 1991, 
compared with total sales of $29.53 billion 

for the 53-week year ended January 31, 1990. 

The 1990 year was the 26th consecutive 
year in which dividends declared were 
increased. The Board of Directors 

increased the dividend 4.9% in April 1990 
to an annual rate of $1.72 per share. 

Substantial progress was made in a number 
of key areas of the Kmart Corporation dur¬ 
ing 1990, which are highlighted in this let¬ 
ter and reviewed in greater detail in the 
theme section of this annual report. 

A year ago we announced a six-year new 

store opening, enlargement, relocation and 
refurbishment program that will involve 
virtually all U.S. Kmart discount stores by 
he end of 1995. We are now one vear into' 
his program. In 1990, we opened 53 new 

full-size Kmart stores, replaced 40 stores 
enlarged 93 stores, closed 42 stores and ’ 

“ed 22 stores to bring their layout 

vear pnHri9o«UP t0 "CW St0re standards. At 
y fu 208 stores had been completed 

tanceof th*!^^ ‘°0k ^ustomer^cce^ 
tance of the layouts, fixturingand new mer 

h nd,se assortments has been very good 

"dnSa'e? results have exceeded S 

imatel^45or5^°rklng l° ComP|ete aPProx- 

bXvtSPKJeCtoSduringl991so. ms year end, about 30%, of the U S 

Kmart store base will be in the new 
mo ern format. Plans now call for comple¬ 

tion of the store enlargements and reloca 
turns by the end of 1993 and the r,>m ' 

refreshments by the end of 1995 -l\ "'ng 
program is the best investment we can 

make in our core discount store business 
By the end of 1995. Kmart will be operat¬ 

ing more than 2.500 modern full-size retail 
stores in the United States. We anticipate 

sales and earnings in future years will ben- 
ctit ver \ nicely from this program. 

nfnnng,M5*\We comPleted the installation 
ot point-of-sale systems and the Kmart 

satdhte network in our U.S. Kmart stores 
Our POS system is capturing detailed 
sales information at the store level, 

enabling buyers to assess developing 

trends and buying patterns, which in turn 

results in improved merchandise mix and 

greater customer satisfaction and service. 
Benefits from the satellite system have 

been substantial and include reduced data 

transmission costs, lower customer credit 
handling expense and improved communi¬ 

cation from headquarters personnel to 
store management through live video 
transmissions. 

V\e recently completed a reorganization of 

oui Kmart hardline merchandising depart¬ 
ments, reducing the layers of reporting 

responsibility. We reduced to four from 
six the number of Divisional Merchandise 

Managers, with just 12 senior buyers re¬ 
porting to the DMMs. This reorganization 
w ill enhance our merchandising programs 
and our ability to meet our customers’ 

shopping needs. In addition, we have 

moved the jewelry and domestics depart¬ 
ments into our softlines division. These 
are truly fashion departments and as such 
should benefit from a closer association 
with our fashion apparel merchants. With 
many of our hardline departments already 
centralized, most advertised and seasonal 
merchandise centrally assigned and all 
softline departments on a centralized 
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system, as much as 75% of all merchandise 
sold in U.S. Kmart stores will be centrally 
merchandised by the end of 1991. This will 

allow better tracking of merchandise sales 
and facilitate more timely replenishment. 

Strategic programs such as our POS sys¬ 

tem and automated replenishment are very 
much interrelated and can produce very 
positive results. The detailed sales infor¬ 
mation being captured by our POS system 
at the store level makes possible automated 

Joseph E. Antonini 

C hairman. President mid Chief Executive Officer 

replenishment which, in turn, results in 
better merchandise buying and order flow. 

I his contributed importantly to a 2% re¬ 
duction in 1990 year-end inventory, exclud¬ 

ing the inventories of The Sports Authority 
and Price Savers, businesses that were 

acquired during 1990. Our focus has been 
<>n reducing inventories in Kmart division 

hardline departments and, despite the 
opening of 93 new and relocated Kmart 
stores and the expansion of another 93 
Kmarts, hardline inventories were down 
approximately $200 million in 1990. 

Also during 1990, we closed all of our re¬ 
gional offices and consolidated our regional 
structure from five regions to three. This 
wrill result in an expense savings but, just 
as important, we have reorganized our 
field management structure, establishing a 
regional manager network that is resulting 
in closer supervision of stores through 
more consistent store visitations. 

Our Specialty Retail Group made excellent 
progress in 1990, contributing $7.2 billion 
in sales and $167 million in operating prof¬ 
its, compared with $4.9 billion in sales and 
$133 million in operating profits in 1989 
exclusive of the portion of the one-time 
charge related to this group. We have five 
growing retail businesses outside of our 
core discount store division, each of which 
provides outstanding growth opportunities 
for Kmart. 

We have become a major factor in the ware¬ 
house club business through the acquisition 
of PACE Membership Warehouse, Inc. in 
November 1989. Our much smaller Makro 
division was consolidated into PACE in the 
first half of 1990. Then in December 1990, 
PACE acquired Price Savers Wholesale, 
Inc., an operator of 17 membership ware¬ 
house clubs in the western part of the 
United States, which complement our exis¬ 
ting PACE locations. We are successfully 
integrating the Price Savers clubs into 
PACE. With 78 warehouse clubs in opera¬ 
tion at the start of the 1991 year and another 
15-20 scheduled to open during the year, 
we anticipate doing in excess of $3.5 billion 
in sales in 1991 in the warehouse club busi¬ 
ness, which we believe will be a growth 
segment of retailing in the years ahead. 
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In March 1990, the company acquired 
The Sports Authority, Inc.. an operator of 
large-format sporting goods stores. 
With 19 stores in operation at year end, this 
is our smallest retail business with 1990 
sales of $105 million. That could double in 
1991 with 15-20 new stores scheduled to 
open and. by 1995, we anticipate The 
Sports Authority will be operating about 
100 stores and generating approximately 
$1 billion in sales. 

Our established specialty store businesses 
had excellent results in 1990. For the 
second consecutive year. Builders Square, 
our warehouse home improvement center 
operation, made outstanding progress. 
Reflecting higher sales and increasing 
gross margins due to an improving mer¬ 
chandise mix, operating results were 
greatly improved in 1990. We anticipate 
continued rapid earnings growth in the 
years ahead. Waldenbooks, the largest 
operator of retail book stores in the United 
States, registered a small earnings gain in 
1990. We are particularly encouraged by 
customer response to Waldenbooks’ new 
Preferred Reader program which entitles 
members to a 10% discount on books and 
most other items sold in a Waldenbooks 
store. We believe this program will be a 
strong contributor to Waldenbooks’ growth 
m future years. Finally, Pay Less Drug 
ptores, which operates super drug stores 

mmne western states, reported strong 
g s in both sales and earnings in 1990 

piUv :z"Trated and proftab|e c°">- Pany with excellent growth prospects. 

vohimp6 ,developed a portfolio of high¬ 

ness thaT^ ^ low*Price retail busi- 

and! ™3S'y' 0peratin« Profits 

value should be enhanced8^’ Shareholdei 

We are confident that our key strategies 
for growth in the 1990s-accelerated store 
expansion and modernization, increased 
emphasis on pricing leadership, capitaliz¬ 
ing on our dominant lifestyle departments 
realizing benefits from a heavy capital ’ 
investment in retail automation, an aggres¬ 
sive and focused advertising program and 
continued growth in specialty retail formats 
-will enable Kmart to realize its long-term 
objectives and result in superior invest¬ 
ment returns for our shareholders. 

March 20, 1991 

Joseph E. Antonini 

Chairman, President and 
Chief Executive Officer 

The vision 
that unites Kmart 

And sets it apart. 

company with vision is made up of people who are focused. 

And it is shaped by management that is deeply confident of where the 
company is going and why. 

At the centerpiece of Kmart s operation is a strong plan for the 

future-a vision that encompasses store expansion and modernization, 

commitment to customer service, increased use of technology; 

^SS^ssive marketing, and a variety of retail formats. Our vision has 

influenced e\ ei \ tiling at Kmart from the new logo design to the way 

we recruit employees. 

Kmart s top management shares a firm belief in the direction Kmart is 

taking, in the strategies that make up our vision of the future. A look 

at key management people and a review of the year can help illustrate 

the very focus that unites Kmart Corporation in the 1990s. 

And sets it apart. 
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Kmart Stores Division 

Category dominance remains a chief goal as 
Kmart continues development of its lifestyle 
power departments into “businesses.” The 
idea is that these businesses cater to the life¬ 
styles of Kmart customers so that when they 

Focusing on the new Kmart. 

he Kmart of the ’90s has a whole 
new look-from the prototype design, intro¬ 
duced as the Oak Park prototype in 1989. to 
Kmart’s new logo, presented in September 
1990. But the idea of a “new Kmart” takes in 
much more: A new level of customer service, 
a new commitment among Kmart employees, 
expanded roles for store managers, centralized 
merchandising, a new ad program, and other 
changes. "It’s everything we’re doing to make 
Kmart better.” says Richard Miller, Executive 
Vice President. Kmart Stores. 

To date. 93 new stores have been built (on the 
order of Kmart’s Oak Park prototype), 40 of 
which replaced smaller stores. Ninety-three 
stores have been expanded and 22 refurbished. 
By the end of 1991. an additional 450-500 pro¬ 
jects will be completed, including new stores, 
expansions and refurbished stores. 

Increased customer service also plays a big 
part in Kmart s renewal. “Being customer- 
friendly, says Miller, 'means having conve¬ 
nt111 store locations and making shopping 
easier for the customer-having wider aisles, 
consistent in-stocks, the right selection of 
merchandise, being at the forefront of trends 
and providing a friendly atmosphere that 
makes customers want to come back.” A 
recent survey by the "Discount Store News” 
shows shoppers at the new prototype stores 
percave store personnel as friendly and “pro- 
"drag helpful service" Miller adds “We want 
shoppers to feel that way about every Kmart 
store, every time they shop’.’ 

Richard S. Miller 

Executive Vice President, Kmart Stores 

After do years at Kmart and with afirmgrip on what 
makes a retailer successful. Dick Miller believes the 1990s 
will be a turning point for discounting. "There won't be 
many discounters left by the end of the '90s;' says Miller 
l he marketplace is too competitive. To survive you have to 

t>e consumer-oriented. Convenience is becoming more of 
an issue. And Kmart is located within five miles of80% of 
the U.S. population. That percentage will continue to 
improve and may become our most significant service." 

think “sporting goods” or “casual apparel,” 
customers think Kmart. 

Kmart’s power departments, which include 
apparel and footwear, home fashions, horticul¬ 
ture, electronics, sporting goods and auto¬ 
motives, have been increased in 1990 to 
include toys and infants and toddlers. The 
addition of merchandise and the fine tuning 
of the merchandise mix. which is ongoing, 
reflects the changing preferences of the 
Kmart customer. 

for instance in apparel, one of Kmart’s key 
power departments, “on-trend” sums up 
Kmart s strategy. On-trend means the latest 
merchandise on the market, delivered on-time 
to meet the needs of today’s Kmart customer, 
n the past, Kmart carried merchandise to 

appeal to a great variety of 
consumers. Now 

Kmart more often 
targets its 
merchandise to 
its demographic 
customer (age 22 
to 55, with a 

W illiam I). Underwood. Senior Vice 
President, Ccneral Merchandise 

”Because the economic climate changes 
so quickly, uv always hare to be two 
steps ahead-its a real challenge. We’re 
paying closer attention to our vendor 
base and making sure Kmart is there 
with the right products at the right time:' 

> 

family income between $35,000 and $55,000 
a year). By being on-trend and providing 
products at the right price, Kmart feels it can 
attract its target customer again and again. 

Today, nearly 70% of Kmart’s product mix is 
centrally merchandised. Centralized merchan¬ 
dising speeds reaction time, getting the best¬ 
selling items on the shelves most often. 

Centralized buying has also helped Kmart 
leverage costs and match inventory mix to high 
and low selling periods. "Fart of our competi¬ 
tive edge." believes Miller, “is our better hard- 
lines and lifestyle mix." And centralized 
merchandising makes sure that mix is in place. 

Enhancing Kmart’s new look is its new internal 
organization. Store managers are more 
accountable. Field operations have been 
streamlined from five main regions to three. 
Combination stores (Super Kmart Centers and 
American Fare), which are power food and 
general merchandise stores, now come under 
the Kmart store division. And all are under the 
watchful eye of Dick Miller. “It’s an exciting 
time to be part of Kmart,” says Miller. "From 
what we’re doing internally to what customers 
see on the outside-Kmart has a new’ direction 
and we have no doubt it’s the right one." 
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Kmart Stores Division 

Joseph R. Thomas 

Executive Vice President and Chief Administrative Officer 

Joe Thomas is in charge of what he calls "the support 
functions ofhmart's busmess-the essence of its everyday 
operations. His overview of the store renewal program, 
implementation of new technology, distribution and 
human resources has but one purpose: "To make Kmart 

ll*Z°f .' T: sayS Thomas have our Umg- 
tZ ^ TSlnp aCCand m're Peking with them. But 
the day-to-day business climate constantly changes so wc 

Cmstantly rmew and ,mprove- We’re 

Technology that looks 
•o the future. 

fntnm AI ecjhn0,0gy a big role in Kmart’s 

“ y " 199°- Kmart's on technology has meant faster communication 

AtoWslradveS" a'“t™ a"d thief 

“Now with the installation of the POS 
satellite systems completed,” says Thom 
“Kmart has realized dramatic efficiencies^ 
four critical areas: Faster, more accurate ’" 
tomer checkout: live communications betwL 
Kmart headquarters and stores; rapid iney 
pensive movement of data throughout the 
Kmart organization; and the ability to cental 
replenish our merchandise.” tally 

Between mid-1986 and November 1990, Kmart 
installed nearly 20.(XX) in-store systems which 
means Kmart put its UPC scanning in place at 
a faster rate than any other retailer in history. 
The results are better inventory control 
because data is transmitted instantly and the 
creation of a sales database. The database 
allows Kmart headquarters to monitor cus¬ 
tomer demand, spot important buying trends 
and help centrally replenish basic, seasonal and 

Dsvid M. Carlson, Senior Vice President. 
Corporate Information Systems 

"Our technology has really put us in a good, 
competitive position. And that's because 
every technology initiative ue undertake 
addresses either one or both of these goals: 
Customer service and/or cost savings." 

8 

event merchandise. And because technology is 
doing more of the work, store associates have 
more time to serve customers. 

Satellite broadcasts between Kmart stores and 
headquarters has meant better communication. 
Weekly video meeting topics range from mer¬ 
chandising trends to new product information 
and company news. Live call-in segments allow 
store personnel to direct comments and ques¬ 
tions to headquarters’ executives and staff. 

The satellite system is also a time-saving and 
extremely cost-effective means for moving 
data, saving on postage and phone costs. 

And technology also means an 
improved distribution system. 
Ten facilities have already been 
upgraded. “And in the next 18 
months,” says Thomas, “we’ll add 
three new hardline distribution 
centers with the ability to move 
goods faster than ever before.” 

Hardline distribution centers will 
open in Ocala, Florida in April 1991 and 
Greensboro, North Carolina in early 1992. 
An Illinois center opens later in 1992. 

Anthony K. Mauro, Senior Vice President. Distribution 
and Transportation 

'Were seeing excellent results in what l think are two 
key areas. First, we're improving turnaround time 
dramatically. And second, ive're preparing a top-tltght 
management team to be tn place to carry out all our 
future goals." 

Both stores and hardline distribution centers 
will use Kmart’s CMAR (Central Merchandise 
Automatic Replenishment) computer program, 
made possible by the POS system. CMAR is 
designed to automatically replenish stores and 
distribution centers with inventory. 

CMAR, coupled with Quick Response and 
Just-In-Time inventory programs, adds up to 
economies in several areas and significant cash 
flow advantages. There is an improved flow of 
merchandise from vendor to distribution cen¬ 
ter to the store sales floor. By mid-1991, stock 
will move into the stores within two days from 
the date of order. And that means improved in¬ 
stocks, increased inventory turns and less 
inventory at the distribution centers and 
stores. “The overall goal, of course,” says 
Thomas, “is to improve our return on the 
assets used to run the business.” 

Thomas believes his responsibilities-from 
technology and distribution to real estate and 
human resources-are all geared to Kmart’s 
growth strategies for the ’90s. "We know what 
our future can be,” says Thomas. “And we are 
implementing our programs at a very rapid 
pace to make it all happen.” 
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Specialty Retail Group 

Specialty retailing fits 
in the picture. 

he newly formed Specialty Retail 
Group is becoming an important part of 
Kmart s big picture. Under the direction of 
the recently named Executive Vice President, 
Specialty Retailing, George Mrkonic, the 
specialty businesses will “improve operating 
results, take advantage of the trends of the 
’90s, and grow on a planned, controlled basis- 
all with the goal,” says Mrkonic, “of creating 
shareholder value.” 

Creating value is at the top of Mrkonic’s 
agenda. He believes his diverse mix of 

businesses will respond to Kmart s st™ 
plans and become forces to be reckoned m, 
in the marketplace. un 

The Specialty Retail Gronp is made 

popular-priced chains. Recent arm.iov Ve 
include The Sports Authority. Inc, 
was acquired in 1990. and PACE Memhl u 
Warehouse, Inc., acquired in 1989 Walden^ 
books and Builders Square were added in 

ars^u-D^»—-i 
A closer look at each of the five businesses 
helps tell the Kmart specialty retailing story. 

Specialty Retail Group Sales and Operating Income 

(Millions) 

FACE Membership 
Warehouse** 

Builders Square 

Pay Less Drug Stores 

Waldenbooks 
The Sports Authority 

* Before restructuring charge 
“Partial year in 1989. 

Sales 
Operating 

Income 

1990 1989 1990 1989* 

$2,295 $ 383 $12 $ 4 
1.890 1.792 58 35 
1.642 1,480 79 72 
1.064 992 29 28 

105 — (3) _ 

The Sports Authority grew dramatically 
in 1990-from eight stores to 19. Two Sports 
Giant stores, opened by Kmart in the 
metropolitan Detroit area in 1989, were 

Jack A. Smith. President and CEO, 
The Sports Authority, Jne. 

" lie think we ran execute the concept of 
the mega sporting goods store better than 
anyone else. A lot of our success is in the 
assortment and how we present it With 
Kmart behind us. we expect to reach 
*1 btlll(m m sales within five years: 

George R. Mrkonic 

cZTu V:ePmident- Specialty Retailing 
has the task 
^messes. His goal hesZ df!,L ^"'defined 
each of the specialty formats'“vli crea)f.value" within 
ways. One: ImpronZZttmJZ w,llbe.c™‘edm two 
strategic plansso the huiZ.81 u,ts mth the right 
says Mrkonic. “Two• CommTf.cT^ frofliable: 

converted to The Sports Authority stores 
in August of 1990. Another 15 to 20 stores 
are scheduled to open each year from 1991 
through 1995. 

The Sports Authority has taken advantage of 
a strategic “window of opportunity,” says 
Mrkonic, “which was created by a positive 
customer reaction to the stores’ wide variety 
and everyday fair price format.” 

Given its 1990 success, as well as America’s 
continued interest in health and fitness, The 
Sports Authority expects significant growth 
over the next few years. 

Glen R. Mielke, Vice President 
Kmart Corporation and President 
and CEO of Builders Square. Inc. 

hr re a lot more than lumber and 
building supplies. Were also in the 
decorating side of the business- 
wall and floor coverings, we help 
people design their kitchens. The 
customer is changing and we want to 
be right in the forefront of that change. 

Builders Square 

Operating improvements helped boost 
Guilders Square’s sales, margins and profits in 

1990. And the strategies remain in place to 
continue the growth. 

Better real estate decisions are part of a mar- 
et development strategy, demanding tighter 

scrutiny of proposed sites. A new merchandis- 
•iig strategy emphasizes the decorating side 
01 the business, promoting wall and floor 
coverings. A planned market development 

strategy has improved merchandising by ident¬ 
ify ing successful store models and reproducing 
them by enlarging and remodeling some stores 
and closing others. 

And Builders Square is now attracting more 
female customers. Mrkonic expects that trend 
to continue throughout the ’90s. 

Charles E. Steinbrueck. President and 
CEO. PACE Membership Warehouse. Inc. 

“ We think we could triple our sales over the 
next five years. By 1995. PACE should have 
over 145 clubs generating $7 billion in sales. 
A mart gives us great support-they tell us 
'develop your long-term plan, then go out and 
do it. * " 

PACE Membership Warehouse 

PACE continues its steady climb in sales and 
profits and is now the fourth largest member¬ 
ship warehouse business in the country. 

PACE grew to 78 stores by the end of 1990 and, 
over the next several years, management plans to 
add 15 to 20 new stores per year through building, 
which will be handled internally, and supplemented 
through acquisitions when appropriate. 

Acquiring the Price Savers chain greatly 
increased the size of PACE and, notes Mrkonic, 
“the Price Savers locations perfectly comple¬ 
ment PACE strategically and operationally!’ 

Short-term plans for PACE include adding per¬ 
ishables (produce, butcher shop and bakery) to 
most stores by mid-1991. 
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Waldenbooks 

Waldenbooks is now the largest operator of 
retail book stores in the United States. 

And although Waldenbooks’ profits didn’t 
improve as much as hoped for in 1990 due to 
the economy, the chain did make real gains in 
market share and penetration. Waldenbooks 
also began a number of operating improvements. 

Charles R. Cumello, President and 

COO, Walden Book Company, Inc. 

“Our Preferred Reader program has 
helped significantly increase our mar¬ 
ket share and penetration. And it 
gives us a database that can target 
marketing programs to specific cus¬ 
tomers. It's an advantage that posi¬ 
tions us very well for the future. ” 

The Preferred Reader program, introduced in 
1990 is an example. For a five dollar member¬ 
ship fee, Preferred Reader members receive 
an ongoing 10% discount on purchases, plus a 
five dohar merchandise coupon after each one- 
hundred dollars in purchases. 

SesPaS taSHmeaJm 3 Sig"i,icant ‘"crease 
ovtr^mM " "d a customer database of 
over 3 5 million names. The database, and its 

kit ketl38 possibllltles- can provide a vital mar 
ketmg advantage for Waldenbooks for the future. 

ther operating improvements at Walden- 

totrS ,Ta C°ntrolledsn,wlha"<l etter real estate decisions. 

Waldenbooks’ strategies for th« ’on 

A Kmart business for five years. Pay I ess is 
strong, regional competitor in nine western states 

Over the last few years, management hJ(\ 
lowed a strategy of focusing on the core , b ' 
macy over-the-counter, and health and C'„ 
aids departments. At the same time PavjJ 
IS de-emphasizing its general merchandiser 
egones. Tins strategy puts l>ay Less i„ a u,' 
ter position to face increased competition 
from general merchandise discount retailers 

A new prototype store has also been success¬ 
ful in increasing core department sales by 
making the Pay Less shopping experience 
more enjoyable for customers. Management 
expects the prototype to be duplicated in 
selected stores throughout the chain. 

According to George Mrkonic, the Specialty 
Retail Group will make up a greater share of 
Kmart s sales and profits by 1995. Today 
it accounts for 22% of Kmart s sales and 
11% of its profits. By 1995, the group is 
expected to represent 30% of Kmart s sales 
and 25% of profits. 

Says Mrkonic, “Were well-positioned for the ’90s. 
We have good, solid chains that fill a real need 
in the marketplace. We are constantly improv¬ 
ing our management, systems and controls. We 
expect to be an integral part of Kmart’s future.” 

I imothy R. McAlear, President and 
CEO, Pay Less Drugstores NW, Inc. 

We're concentrating on our core pharmacy 
business, over-the-counter, and health and 
beauty aids. And we’re looking to make 
the shoppers experience m our core depart¬ 
ments more enjoyable. It ’s paying off " 

Thomas F. Murasky 
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 

"One of my functions is to help balance optimism with 
realism. "And realism is making sure resources are avail¬ 
able to fund capital expenditures of roughly $5 billion over 
a five-year period, ending in fiscal year 1995. Murasky 
believes inventory reduction is a key element in meeting 
Kmarts financial goals. "There 's no doubt we can achieve 
greater sales and profit with less inventory, "says 
Murasky. ""We're already seeing improvement in this area. 
And the more improvement, the more money available to 
go back into the business and to our shareholders." 

The financial role in 
Kmart's vision. 

om Murasky has a clear, compel¬ 
ling view of the role Finance plays at Kmart: 
We make sure the resources are there to make 

our vision come alive.” And Murasky has 
specific objectives to help ensure Kmart’s finan¬ 
cial goals through 1995. These goals are: 

After tax return on sales of 3.5% 

Return on assets of 8-9% 

Return on equity in excess of 20% 

Return on invested capital in excess of 15% 

Inventory turns approaching 4 per year 

I he 1991-1995 capital spending program is 
aimed at increasing Kmart’s financial perfor¬ 
mance. And much of the money will go toward 

the building, expanding and relocating of 
Kmart stores. Through 1995, capital expendi¬ 
tures will be about $5 billion-about 75% will 
be spent on the Kmart Division, the rest on 
the Specialty Retail Group’s stores. 

Although a considerable amount of cash will be 
tied up in the capital expenditure program, 
Murasky expects a significant cash flow return 
beginning in 1994. Increased cash flow will 
come from several sources: The winding- 
down of capital expenditures, an improvement 
in operating profits of Kmart stores, and an 
increasing profit contribution from the 
Specialty Retail Group. 

Key strategies are in place for reaching 
Kmart’s 1995 financial goals. They include, of 
course, the modernization and merchandising 
programs. Continued, prudent funding of the 
Specialty Retail Group. An emphasis on main¬ 
taining Kmart’s high credit ratings and increas¬ 
ing investor confidence levels. And, inventory 
reduction. Murasky will work toward improv¬ 
ing inventory turns which will result in freeing 
up cash for reinvestment and distribution to 
shareholders. “We’re optimistic,” says 
Murasky. “but at the same time, realistic. 
We'll attain our financial goals because our 
vision depends on it.” 

Our plan that is our future. 

mart’s vision is being realized and 
can be seen everywhere at Kmart-from the 
huge lobby billboard at headquarters, totaling 
new Kmart stores-to a 7-second credit autho¬ 
rization, speeding across the country. 

Our strategies for the '90s are working. 
1. Kmart stores are bigger and better. 
2. Kmart’s lifestyle departments are meeting 

customers’ needs. 
3. Centralized merchandising is in place. 
4. The POS system is making Kmart more 

competitive. 
5. Kmart’s new ad program is telling the story. 
6. And specialty retailingis makinga difference. 

With management’s focus on a plan that is 
firmly set, there is a feeling at Kmart of deter¬ 
mination, of a future with enormous possi¬ 
bilities. It is that feeling that unites us. And 
already sets Kmart apart. 
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11 - Year Financial Summary 

Summary of Operations (Millions) 

Sales 

Cost of merchandise sold 

Selling, general and administrative expenses 

Interest expense-net 

Income from continuing retail operations before 
income taxes 

Income from continuing retail operations 

Total assets 

Long-term obligations-Debt 

-Capital leases 
Shareholders’ equity 

Capital expenditures—owned property 

Depreciation and amortization-owned property 
Weighted average shares outstanding 

Financial Ratios 

Return on sales-lncome from continuing retail 
operations before income taxes 

tan on be^^^'T"8 ^ 

XSr Storeh°lders' to- co„,,Mi„g 

Wn and equ,valent as, , of t0(a| capita]i2alion 

WrtZr CO”lKn5ati0,, and Per sales dollar 
working capital ratio 

1990 1989* 

$32,070 $29,533 
$23,895 $21,745 
$ 7,012 $ 6.642 
$ 399 $ 356 

$ 1.146 $ 515 
$ 756 $ 323 

Per-Share Data <Dollars) 

Earnings per common and common equivalent share from 
continuing retail operations 

$ 3.78 
Cash dividends declared 

$ 1.72 
Book value 

$ 26.94 

Financial Data (Millions) 

$ 3,519 

S 13.899 

$ 1,701 

S 1.598 

$ 5,384 

S 814 

$ 392 

200 

3.6% 

2.4% 

5.8% 

15.2% 

43.5% 

14.6% 

1.8 

$ 1.61 

$ 1.64 

$ 24.90 

$ 3,685 

$13,145 

$ 1,480 

$ 1,549 

$ 4,972 

$ 631 

$ 359 

200 

1.7% 

1.1% 
2.7% 

6.4% 

43.4% 

15.1% 

1.9 

$27,301 

$19,914 

$ 6,184 

$ 313 

$ 1,244 

$ 803 

I $ 4.00 

$ 1.32 

$ 25.12 

$ 3,654 

$12,126 

$ 1,358 

$ 1,588 

$ 5,009 

$ 570 

$ 337 

200 

4.6% 

2.9% 

7.2% 

18.2% 

38.0% 

14.7% 

2.0 

1987 1986 1985 198-1 1983 1982 1981 1980 

$25,627 $23,812 $22,035 $20,762 $18,380 $16,611 $16,394 $14,118 
$18,564 $17,258 $15,987 $15,095 $13,354 $12,237 $12,308 $10,380 
$ 5,913 $ 5,517 $ 5,227 I $ 4,811 $ 4,188 $ 3,969 $ 3,744 $ 3,284 
$ 308 $ 326' $ 363 $ 292 $ 228 $ 220 $ 230 $ 200 

$ 1,171 $ 1,028 $ 757 $ 835 $ 859 $ 408 $ 311 $ 429 
$ 692 $ 570 $ 472 $ 503 $ 491 $ 255 $ 211 $ 252 

$ 3.40 $ 2.84 $ 2.42 $ 2.58 $ 2.53 $ 1.34 $ 1.12 $ 1.34 
$ 1.16 $ 1.00 $ .92 $ .84 $ .72 $ .68 $ .64 $ .60 
$ 22.08 $ 19.66 

■> in $ 17.32 $ 17.24 $ 15.57 $ 13.93 $ 13.20 $ 12.66 

$ 3,003 $ 2,533 $ 2.437 $ 2,422 $ 2.268 $ 1.827 $ 1.473 $ 1,552 
$11,106 $10,578 $ 9,991 $ 9.262 $ 8.183 $ 7.344 $ 6.657 $ 6,089 
$ 1,191 $ 1,011 $ 1.456 $ 1,107 $ 711 $ 596 $ 415 $ 419 
$ 1,557 $ 1,600 $ 1,713 $ 1,780 $ 1.822 $ 1,824 $ 1,752 $ 1,618 
$ 4,409 $ 3,939 $ 3,273 $ 3,234 $ 2.940 $ 2.601 $ 2,456 $ 2,343 
$ 542 $ 552 $ 547 $ 622 $ 368 $ 306 $ 361 $ 302 
$ 304 $ 280 $ 246 $ 192 $ 161 $ 152 $ 136 $ 116 

202 199 188 188 187 186 186 185 

4.6% 4.3% 3.4% 4.0% 4.7% 2.5% 1.9% 3.03 

2.7% 2.4% 2.1% 2.4% 2.7 % 1.5% 1.3% 1.8% 
6.5% 5.7% 5.2% 6.2% 6.8% 3.9% 3.5% 4.5% 

17.6% 17.4%- 14.6% 17.1% 18.9% 10.4% 9.0% 11.6% 
39.4% 43.2%) 50.8% 49.8% 47.0% 48.7% 47.2% 46.8% 
14.9% 15.1%, 15.2% 15.0% 15.4% 16.4% 15.7% 15.8% 
1.9 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.8 1.8 2.0 
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1990 Operations and Financial Review 

(Dollars) 
$2.00 

1.50 

1.00 

.50 

M 82 83 84 85 86 87 88 89 90 

Cash Dividends 
Declared Per Share 

Management Discussion & Analysis 

Overview of 1990 

Results for fiscal 1990 were affected by weakening economic conditions and I 
sumer confidence in the latter half of the year, due to public concerns over devel °W C°n' 
in the Middle East. Consolidated sales in 1990 were $32.1 billion, an 8.6% increa mentS 
1989 sales of $29.5 billion. Sales in 1990 included 52 weeks, compared with 53 weT^ 
1989. Consolidated sales in comparable stores-those stores open effectively thaT h W 
both years-increased 1.9% over 1989 on a 52-week basis. Net income in 1990 waj 
$756 million, compared with $323 million in 1989, an increase of 134.3%. Excludin 
a $422 million after-tax one-time restructuring charge in 1989. net income in 1990 ^ 
increased 1.5% from the prior year reflecting lower consumer confidence increased 
competition and a full-year impact of an expanded competitive pricing nroeram ,»r„ n 
offset by a lower LIFO charge. The competitive pricing program was expanded during * 
1989 as the prices of several thousand items were reduced to maintain Kmart s nrirf * 
leadership across America. F 

The company launched its store modernization program to relocate, expand and/or 
refurbish substantially all existing domestic Kmart stores into full-size, new-look stores 
I he program, which features a new layout and increased customer service was adorned 
near the end of 1989 with plans for completion by the mid-1990s. The program has pro¬ 
gressed in its initial year as 208 stores obtained the new look during 1990. consisting of 

reptaKd owct- sm* - "> - -si 

During November 1990. the company completed installation of point-of-sale (POS) 
scanning and satellite systems in all U.S. Kmart stores. The POS system records the 
sale of each item and transmits that data to Kmart headquarters allowing the company to 

•SIT ? PIUVI,teS lhe tasis for merchandising, Jo- ' 
ted replenishment, greater store expense control and customer service. 

own^SdiSwf* ^’r1"0, PACE MembershiP Warehouse, Inc. (PACE), a wholly 
Savers) Price Sav° ^ orporation, acquired Price Savers Wholesale, Inc. (Price 

ically the Price Sawr-T^T * warebouse c*ubs in five western states. Geograph- 

strenglhemn'^ihTl ^ TP'ement «■*« PACE locations, thereby 
company anticimt p* thT^sJ^are^0Use c*u^ position in the western United States. The 

tions in the first half 1 f kk!i ^dVers *ocat'ons will be integrated into PACE opera- 
be a growth segment f th a?ag?ment believes that the warehouse club concept will 

R th segment of the retail industry in the years ahead. 

Fort Lauderdale fThTvm atC|mred *be Sports Authority, Inc., headquartered in 

nineteen 40 000 to 50 (XX) ^3nUa[y 3<J’ ^ Sports Authority operated a chain of 

a broad range 0 ST SP°rtmg goods me«a «*** in * ()ffering 
stores toSure E^ag00dS * everyday low Prices. Management expects these 
in the years ahead Smg share wf a 8rowing sports apparel and equipment market 

On November 22 loon * 
a deep-discount office snnnL acqu,red a 21-6% equity interest in OfficeMax, Inc., 
Ohio. OfficeMax is the Hr supe^ store cbam headquartered in suburban Cleveland, 

A typical OfficeMax store atlemges TtxlT SUPf ^ operator in the Midwe„st’ 
supply items, furniture and < 1 • 000 square feet and features over 6,000 office 

nuure and electronics at everyday low prices. 
hi seal 1990 marked thp ^ 

cash dividends declared ;»«. u °PSffutlve year tbat Kmart Corporation increased 

share, compared with $1 64 T SSSfS,l)ividends declared in 1990 were $1.72 per 
per snare in 1989, an increase of 4.9%. 16 

Analysis of General Merchandise Operations 

At January 30, 1991, the general-merchandise group consisted primarily of 2 327 
Kmart stores located in the United States, Canada and Puerto Rico. A three-year sum 
mary of the general-merchandise groups sales and operating income follows: 

(Millions U.S.$) 1990 
% 

Change 1989 
% 

Change 1988 

Sales 
United States $23,792 1.1 $23,524 5.9 $22,205 
Canada 1,099 .7 1,092 8.0 1.010 

Total Sales $24,891 1.1 $24,616 6.0 $23,215 

Operating Income $ 1,307 82.6 $ 716 (50.1) $ 1.436 
Non-recurring Charge i-— — 598 — 

Operating Income before Charge $ 1,307 ( .6) $ 1.314 (8.5) $ 1,436 

Sales in 1990 and 1988 included 52 weeks, compared with 53 weeks in 1989. The in¬ 
creased sales in the general-merchandise group in 1990 were principally due to new store 
openings and expansions, and increased comparable store sales. The 1989 sales increase 
was attributed to increased comparable store sales, expansion of Kmart’s competitive 
price program and new store openings. Kmart sales in comparable stores-those domes¬ 
tic and Canadian stores open effectively throughout both fiscal years-increased 1.3% in 
1990 and 2.0% in 1989. The comparable sales increases were calculated on a 52-week 
basis. The lower comparable store increase in 1990 was primarily due to a weakening 
U.S. economy, consumer concerns over Middle East developments and increased com¬ 
petition. Sales per square foot (including unconsolidated Kmart store licensee sales) 
were $189 in 1990, compared with $191 in 1989 and $188 in 1988. The small decline in 
sales per square foot in 1990 was due primarily to a difficult sales environment. In addi¬ 
tion, most relocations and expansions were completed late in the year having little 
impact on sales per square foot. 

Kmart Canada Limited’s general-merchandise sales in Canadian dollars decreased 
.8% in 1990, compared with a 4.7% increase in 1989. Kmart Canada's 1990 results 
reflected weakness in the Canadian economy during the year, consumer concern over 
a Canadkin Goods and Services Tax (GST) and Kresge and Jupiter store closings. The 
GS L a 7% value-added tax, went into effect on January 1, 1991 and increased the price 
of many goods and services in Canada. The results for 1989 in Canadian dollars were 
attributable to strong Christmas sales and improved merchandising strategies. Kmart 
Canadas U.S. dollar sales increase reflected a 1.5% improvement in the average 
Canadian dollar in 1990, compared with a 3.2% improvement in 1989. The average 
dollar exchange rates were .8574 in 1990, .8445 in 1989 and .8181 in 1988. 

Operating income measures the group’s performance before interest, corporate 
expenses and income taxes. Operating income for the general-merchandise group 
>ni leased 82.6% to $1,307 million in 1990. The 1990 increase was due to the inclusion of 
a one-time restructuring charge of $598 million before taxes in 1989 results. Excluding 

it one-time charge in 1989, operating income decreased .6% to $1,307 million in 1990, 
compared with $1,314 million in 1989 and $1,436 million in 1988. The 1990 decrease was 
^ ue to lower gross margins resulting from a full-year’s impact of competitive pricing, a 
Wea en'nR U.S. economy and heavy markdowns in apparel during the important fourth 
quarter resulting from increased discounting by competition and unseasonably warm 

CI.eat er’ partlal,y offset by a lower LIFO charge. Excluding the one-time charge, the de- 
treiise in 1989 operating income was due to lower gross margins resulting from manage- 

en s Increased emphasis on the competitive pricing program as a long-term strategy. 
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In conjunction with its retail automation program. Kmart continued develonn 
a centralized merchandising program by adding curtains and drapes, floor coveri ^ °f 
major appliances and automotive departments to the program during 1990. fy- recjRs’ 
the decision-making layers between customer and vendor, centralization allows o 
response to changing fashions and consumer spending patterns. Using informatio <*er 
vided by POS scanning and the satellite network, centralized buying results in b n ^ 
stock positions in Kmart stores, increased sales volume and decreased store hours^ m 
required to reorder and restock merchandise. At the end of 1990, approximated 7()<7 
Kmart merchandise was ordered centrally. f °* 

During 1990, 97 Kmart stores opened in the United States and Canada comnared 
with 72 openings in 1989. Also in 1990, 93 Kmart stores were expanded to full-size 
stores and, of the 85 stores that closed. 40 were replaced by brand-new. larger stores 
the same market. Additionally, Makro locations were converted to PACK memKorcX m 
warehouses during the first half of 1990. " ™p 

For 1991, the company plans to complete 450-500 Kmart store modernization oro- 
jects including store relocations, expansions and refurbishments. Additionally the com. 
P30' e5yec ts t0 c*ose remaining Canadian Kresge and Jupiter stores during 1991 nf 
which three will be converted to Kmart stores. 8 

duringl990*IOWin^^ Wghli8htS the «enera|-merchandise groups store activity 

Kmart 
U.S. 
Canada 

Kresge and Jupiter 
American Fare 
Makro 

Total General 

Merchandise 

Kmart Retail Square 
Feet (Millions) 

Kmart Store Sales 
per Square Foot 

End End 1990 Activity Planned 
End 
1991 

1988 1989 Opened Closed Converted End 

2,145 
119 

2,194 
121 

93 
4 

82 
3 

— 2,205 
122 

2,265 
126 

37 

6 

36 
1 
9 

1 
15 

1 (8) 

21 
2 2 

2,307 2,361 98 101 (8) 2,350 2,393 

131 137 
142 

$ 188 $ 191 
— $ 189 

analysis of Specialty Retail Operations 

warehouse clubs wareL!^ h°mPany S specialty retajl 8r°up consisted of membershi[ 
stores and sportm^ooT' lmprovement centers, super drug stores, retail bo 
specialty retail operations- ^ St°res' * lowing is a brief description of Kmart’s 

rado, wasxaCired ^ _PACE’ headquartered in Englewood, Colo 

which typically occupy lOOm^^1989' FACE operates warehouse cIl 
name merchandise at n ’ SC)Uare ^eet and offer members a variety of bran 
eery retailers. During lit? pap^311V bel°w those of traditional discount and g 
to new store openings anH ,’k ALE achieved strong sales increases partially due 
and bakery programs in its & SUCCess^u* implementation of fresh produce, mea 

PACE acquired 17 warehouse units in December 1990 through the acquisition of 
Price Savers Wholesale, Inc. Price Savers locations, concentrated in five western 
states, complement existing PACE locations and strengthen the company’s ware 
house club position in the western United States. The Price Savers locations will 
be integrated into PACE operations in the first half of 1991. Additionally eight 
Makro locations were converted into PACE warehouses during 1990. 

The acquisitions of PACE and Price Savers have been accounted for as pur¬ 
chases, and accordingly, their results of operations were consolidated from their 
respective dates of acquisition. Refer to Note (B) of the accompanying Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information regarding the PACE 
and Price Savers acquisitions. 

■ Builders Square, Inc. -A typical Builders Square warehouse home improve¬ 
ment store occupies 80. (XX) square feet and carries a wide selection of everyday 
low-priced do-it-yourself merchandise displayed in a warehouse-style format. 
Builders Square operating results were greatly improved in 1990 primarily due 
to increased sales and higher gross profit margins resulting from an improved 
merchandise mix and a lower LIFO charge. 

■ Pay Less Drugstores Northwest, Inc. -Pay Less operates super drug stores which 
occupy from 25,(XX) to 80.000 square feet and offer a variety of merchandise 
ranging from traditional drug store offerings to cameras and film developing, 
automotive, lawn and garden items, and sporting goods merchandise. The oper¬ 
ating results improved in 1990 as compared to 1989 primarily due to increased 
sales resulting from a shift towards more traditional drug store offerings and the 
acquisition of new third-party provider plans for the pharmacy business. 

■ Walden Book Company. Inc.-A Waldenbooks store typically occupies 3,000 
square feet in a regional or local shopping mall and offers video and audio tapes 
and computer software as well as a wide selection of books. The 1990 operating 
results were above the prior year due to higher sales and improved gross margin 
resulting from the successful addition of the Preferred Reader Club which offers 
special discounts to club members. 

■ The Sports Authority, Inc. -The Sports Authority operates a chain of nineteen 
40,000 to 50,000-square-foot sporting goods mega stores in six states, offering a 
broad range of sporting goods and apparel at everyday low prices. The Sports 
Authority, headquartered in Fort Lauderdale, Florida, was acquired on March 2, 
1990. During 1990, Kmart s two Sports Giant locations in metropolitan Detroit 
were converted to The Sports Authority units. 

I he acquisition of The Sports Authority has been accounted for as a purchase, 
and accordingly, the results of operations have been consolidated from the date 
of acquisition. Refer to Note (B) of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated 
financial Statements for additional information regarding The Sports Authority 
acquisition. 

In ()ctober 1990, the company sold Bargain Harold s Discount Limited, a subsidiary 
y. | '"‘.p' *"anada Limited, to Quebec Equity Capital, an investment partnership, at book 

a ue. he sale reflected management s decision to reinvest capital resources in higher 
yielding retail activities. 
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Sales by Business Group 

rSpecialty Retail 

li General Merchandise 

A three-vear summary of the specialty retail group's sales and operating incom 
follows: 

(Millions) 1990 
% 

Change 1989 
% 

Change 1988 
Sales $7,179 46.0 $4,917 20.3 |L086 

Operating Income S 167 83.9 $ 91 27.2 $ 72 Non-recurring Charge — — 42 | 

Operating Income before Charge S 1«7 26.0 $ 133 j 85.6 $ 72 

The increase in the specialty retail groups sales in 1990 resulted primarily from the 
inclusion of a full-vear of PACE sales, the groups store opening program, the acquisition 
of The Sports Authority and Price Savers, and increased comparable store sales par 
tially offset by the sale of Bargain Harold’s in October 1990. The groups comparable 
store sales increase was 5.2% in 1990 and 1.8% in 1989, calculated on a 52-week basis 
Comparable store increases were strong for all specialty operations, but were partic- 
ularl>' strong for Pay Less and Waldenbooks primarily due to merchandising improve- 

T»;Landuth<; aTIS‘tl0n of new third-Party provider plans at Pay Less and the addition 
of Waldenbooks Preferred Reader program. PACE and The Sports Authority sales were 
not included in comparable sales in 1990. 

rf't fT'h" spec,a![y retail grouP mcreased 83.9% from $91 million in 
l n°n199°' partialIy due t0 the inclusion of a one-time restructuring 

charge of M2 mil ion in 1989. Excluding the restructuring charge, operating profit * 

'“SJd -hA> /( fr°m $133 milllon in 1989 to $167 million in 1990. This improvement 

SL“ results at Builders Square and ,he inch|- 

acouStionSSrp^r86 wasfimari|y due t0 the group’s store opening program, the 
S SIfE an?Increased comparable store sales. The increase in operating 

and a SducedTlPrT'h V 3 reSUlt ° ,,mproved results at “ers Square and Pay Less 
one-time charge of y °^set by lower Waldenbooks operating profit and a 
fixture write-offs i l0n before taxes for speciality retail group store closings and 
Square lZflP Tl\aSS°mted With refurh'shment of previously owned Builders 

The specialty retail groups 1990 store activity is summarized below: 

End 
1988 

End 

1989 Acquired Opened 

1990 Activity 

Closed Sold Converted End 

Planned 
End 
1991 

PACE* — 47 17 6 — — 8 78 94 
Builders Square 133 141 — 5 2 — — 144 151 
Pay Less 

i)rug Stores 269 294 — 33 6 — — 321 355 
Waldenbooks 1,218 1,255 — 41 28 — — 1,268 1,263 
The Sports 

Authority — — 8 9 — — 2 19 35 
Bargain Harold’s 153 155 — 2 — 157 — _ 
Office Square** 2 4 — 1 — 5 _ __ 
Sports Giant — 2 — — — — (2) — _ 

— — — — _ _ 
Total Specialty 

Retail 1,775 1,898 25 97 36 162 8 1,830 1,898 

Specialty Retail 
Square Feet 
(Millions) 22 28 32 

♦PACE acquired 17 Price Savers and converted eight Makro locations to PACE warehouses during 1990. 

♦♦Office Square locations were sold to OfficeMax on November 3. 1990. Kmart subsequent!v acquired an 
equity investment in OfficeMax. 

Refer to Note (M) of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
for additional information regarding the company’s business groups. 

Licensee Operations and Equity Investments 

Meldisco 

I he company s domestic Kmart and Pay Less footwear departments are operated 
bv the Meldisco subsidiaries of Melville Corporation. Kmart store footwear depart¬ 
ments are owned 49% by the company and 51% by Melville. Sales of the Kmart 
licensee footwear departments increased 2.3% to $1,127 million in 1990 and increased 
3.8 r to $1,102 million in 1989. The sales increase in 1990 was primarily due to 
increased sales in women’s athletic and childrens lines and new stone openings. The 1989 
sales increase was primarily due to a greater share of the better grade womens and chil- 

ens footwear market. Equity in income of footwear operations in Kmart stores was 
! b million in 1990 and $43 million in both 1989 and 1988. The 1990 increase was due to 
1]g er sales levels and an improved gross profit margin. 

Refer to Note (H) of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
<>r urther information regarding the company’s investment in Meldisco. 

Coles Myer Ltd. 

At December 31, 1990. Kmart had a 22.0% equity interest in Coles Myer Ltd., 
S *ar?est retailer. The market value of this investment as of January 30, 1991 

st }/L-million, compared with $754 million at January 31, 1990, based on the closing 
Shrk lTC ?S and $6.64 (U.S. dollars) per share, respectively, on the Sydney 
pared X<u rP' Smart’s equity in income was $68 million in U.S. dollars in 1990, com- 

vv,t 1 $62 million and $61 million in 1989 and 1988, respectively. The increase in 
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equity income for 1990 was primarily due to higher gross margins, good expense com 
and a lower effective tax rate, partially offset by a depressed Australian economy 
Equity income in 1989 was relatively unchanged from 1988 due primarily to a sluggish 
Austrian retail sales environment and one-time gains on the sale of certain property 
and investments in 1988. The average dollar exchange rates were. 7806 in 1990 79o() 
1989and.7847in 1988. ’' ln 

At December 31. 1990. Coles Myer operated 986 supermarket, food service and 
liquor stores, 425 discount stores (including 141 Kmart stores). 79 department stores 
and 178 specialty retail stores across Australia and New Zealand. 

For additional information regarding the company’s investment in Coles Myer 
refer to Note (H) of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

OfficeMax. Inc. 

On November 22. 1990. Kmart acquired a 21.6% equity interest in OfficeMax 
Inc., a privately held office supply super store chain. OfficeMax stores average 
23.000 square feet and feature over 6,000 office supplv items, furniture and electronics 
at everyday low prices. At January 30. 1991. OfficeMax operated 46 stores in eight mid- 
western states. Prior to Kmart s investment. OfficeMax purchased Kmart’s five Office 
Square stores and converted them to OfficeMax stores. Kmart has the right to acquire 
additional equity in OfficeMax under certain conditions. 

Refer to Note (B) of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
for further information regarding the company’s acquisition of an equity interest in 
OfficeMax. 

Cost of Merchandise Sold 

Cost of merchandise sold, including buying and occupancy costs, as a percent of 
sales was /4.5% in 1990. compared with 73.6% in 1989 and 72.9% in 1988 The 9% 

^eoafpIrp0St °fTrchar!dlfLS0ld as a Percent of sales was primarily due to the inclu- 
mc?ease tl9«T T ^ ,haVe 3 substantial|y lower gross profit margin. The .7% 
comnetitiv WaS * a' Utab e t0 tbe 'nclus'on of PACE and increased emphasis on 
competitive pricing and price leadership. 

last-tafeSfl rani*’16 CuT?y’S d°mestic inventories are measured using the 
matching of mm method of inventory valuation. LIFO provides a more accurate 
SSuZ^ W? CUrrent revenues and ^asures the impact of inflation on 
accounting for m ° nS'ng pnCeS' Smce the adoption of the UFO method of 
mem of UbtTnl ? e Tem°,rieS in 1974’the comPany had used the U.S. Depart- 
1990 thecommnvt0re >nce *ndex tomeasure inflation in retail prices. In 
its inventories in I I S^K°Pe mterna! md'ces to measure inflation in the retail prices of 
accurately measure inflat ^ • St<^res' * b's change to an internal index was made to more 

—P— n* change proved an 
cumulative effect of thi^ 4,. ° , 4 be comPany was not able to determine the 

c an^e nor ^be impact on any individual year prior to 1990. 

1990^compared,rw!th °k ,nventories was a pretax LIFO charge of $57 million in 
respectively. The lower IFPO mdbon and $160 million in 1989 and 1988, 
internal inflation index as d C-Kf*?e,*n 1990 was due to the company’s adoption of an 
due to a |0^SS2^rted- a,^°Ve- The lower LIF0 charge in 1989 was mainly 

For ad °n’ Part,3lly offset ^ ^er ffws profit margins. 

to Note (F) of the accommn'0 re^ardm^ company’s merchandise inventories, refer 
the accompany,ng Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

9% of 

charge. 

Operating Expenses 

Selling, general and administrative expenses, including advertising, were 21 
sales in 1990, compared with 22.5% in 1989, excluding the $640 million one-time charge 
and 22.7% in 1988. The .6% decrease in selling, general and administrative expenses as 
a percent of sales in 1990 was due to the inclusion of PACE which has substantially lower 
operating expenses as a percent of sales. 

Other factors that influenced operating expenses follow: 

Employee compensation and benefits increased 4.9% in 1990 to $4,678 million and 

U.1% in 1989 to $4,461 million. Asa percent of sales, employee compensation and bene¬ 

fits were 14.6%, 15.1% and 14.7% in 1990, 1989 and 1988, respectively. The decrease as 

a percent of sales in 1990 resulted primarily from the inclusion of PACE. The percent of 

sales increase in 1989 was primarily attributable to salary increases for existing 
employees and the company’s new store opening program. 

Pension expense was $55 million in 1990, compared with $54 million and $35 million 

in 1989 and 1988. respectively. The increases in 1990 and 1989 from 1988 were primarily 

due to plan amendments. For additional information regarding the company’s pension 

plans, refer to Note (N) of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Financial Accounting Standard 

No. 106 “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions” 

(FAS 106) in December 1990. This statement requires employers to accrue for future 

postretirement benefits such as health and life insurance. Implementation of FAS 106 is 

not required until fiscal 1993. The effect on Kmart is not expected to be material as the 

company does not offer significant postretirement benefits to its employees other than 
through its pension plans. 

Advertising expense was $577 million in 1990. $571 million in 1989 and $581 million 

in 1988. The increase from 1989 was primarily due to advertising for the specialty retail 

group. As a percent of sales, advertising expense continues to decrease reflecting 
increased advertising effectiveness. 

1989 Reserve for Kmart Store Restructuring and Other Charges 

Included in the results for 1989 was a $640 million pretax charge for expenses asso¬ 

ciated with the Kmart store restructuring program as well as the conversion of Makro 

warehouses into PACE membership warehouse clubs, the settlement of certain litigation 

and other costs including subsidiary store closings. Net of taxes, the 1989 charge was 
$422 million, or $2.10 per share. 

H>r additional information regarding the 1989 provision, refer to Note (C) of the 

accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Interest Expense 

A schedule of the components of net interest expense on debt follows: 

(Millions) 
1990 1989 1988 

Interest Expense on Debt $232 $205 $172 
Interest Income 

10 24 33 

Met Interest Expense on Debt $222 $181 $139 

Wghe \ lnfrease 'n net mterest expense on debt in 1990 was primarily attributable to 
relahn sbort‘term borrowings resulting from increased capital expenditures 

tions f t! - St°re modern*zation program and from borrowings to finance the acquisi- 
e SfKHts Authority, Price Savers and an equity interest in OfficeMax, partially 
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(Dollars) 
$4.00 

3.50 

3.00 

2.50 

2.00 

1.50 

1.00 

.50 

offset by proceeds from the sale of Bargain Harold’s. The increase in net interest 
expense on debt in 1989 was primarily a result of higher levels of short-term borrowing 
resulting from higher inventory levels and the acquisition of PACE. The company’s S 
weighted average interest rates on total debt were 9.3% in 1990, 9.7% in 1989 and 9 5% 
in 1988. Weighted average interest rates for short-term borrowings were 8.3%, 9 y - ' . 
7.5% for 1990.1989 and 1988. respectively. ’ ' nd 

Net Income 

Net income for the year was $756 million, an increase of 134.3% from 1989 net 
income of $323 million. The increase in 1990 was primarily a result of the one-time 
charge of $422 million after tax in 1989 for Kmart restructuring. Excluding the one-time 
charge in 1989.1990 net income increased 1.5% from 1989 reflecting a weakening econ¬ 
omy, a full-year impact of the competitive pricing program and higher interest expense 
offset by a reduced LIFO charge. Earnings per share were $3.78, $1.61 and $4.00 for 
1990,1989 and 1988, respectively. 

The effective income tax rate in 1990 was 34.0%-, compared with 37.3%, in 1989 and 
35.5% in 1988. The decrease in 1990 is primarily due to higher foreign tax credits and a 
lower effective state and local tax rate. The increase in 1989 was primarily due to a 
higher effective state and local tax rate. 

81 82 83 84 85 86 87 88 89 90 

Earnings Per Share 
from Continuing 
Retail Operations 

Financial Accounting Standard No. 96 “Accounting for Income 'Faxes” (FAS 96) was 
issued in December 1987. The standard requires adjustment of deferred tax liabilities for 
enacted changes in the statutory federal tax rate. During 1989. the standard was 
amended to delay the required implementation of FAS 96 until fiscal years beginning 
after December 15. 1991. The Financial Accounting Standards Board is currently consid¬ 
ering further amendments to the standard. The company currently has no plans to adopt 
ScT’ p™ou“nt Prior to required date. However, had Kmart adopted 
t-AS 9b in 1990. the company would have recognized a credit due to a reduction in 
deferred tax liabilities. 

r f,Rrfur t0?°te (I) of the accomPanyingNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
tor further information regarding income taxes. 

Effects of Inflation 

cost basis nnHCla S ate™ents 0 ^mart Corporation have been prepared on a historical 
non-food rptaii^ 8enCra k accounting principles. Kmart Corporation, like most 
statement - Th ^ 0!^1 e hlhO method of inventory valuation in its historical financial 
because the n* - e cosl^merchandise sold approximates current cost. In addition, 
tion and amnrtr/^3^ IS ^ ur^>lsh|n^ existing stores and opening new stores, deprecia- 
rental expense kJ™ eXPel!se ™ore cl°sely approximates current cost. The company’s 

rentals do account for rfthe“^”f Mata'’ innat,°n a',h0l,gh 

Financial Condition 

Financial Objective 

shareholders withTnonr ^nanc'a* P°hcy is designed to provide the company and its 
degree of financial flexihild^ik^11™ °n 'nvestment. a solid capital structure and a high 
ment of the company’s assets optimum return on investment requires deploy¬ 
seeking optimum return Kmprtd reS0Urces where they will provide the best return. In 
ment opportunities in addition t, j™"aKemem continues to review potential retail invest¬ 
ment. relocation and eSanT 30 ,mproved merchandise mix, the refurbish- 
company s specialty retail on°° ? exis*,ng ^.S. Kmart stores, and the expansion of the 
Kmart and S SS' additi«"’ Kmart management sold or closed 

P ia.ty stores which did not generate sufficient returns. The company 
24 

expects that funds required to finance refurbishment of existing stores future expin 
sions and relocations, and acquisitions will be provided primarily- by internally generated 
funds, additional debt offerings, the sale and leaseback of owned properties and the leas¬ 
ing of land and buildings. 

Cash Flow 

Company funds generated by operations, investing and financing activities as 
reported in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows on page 33 are summarized 
below. Note (E) of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements con¬ 
tains additional information regarding the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Net cash provided by operations in 1990 was $1.154 million, compared with net cash 
used for operations of $103 million in 1989 and net cash provided by operations of 
$1,211 million in 1988. The increase in cash provided by operations in 1990 was primarily 
due to lower merchandise inventories, higher net income, higher depreciation and 
deferred income taxes. During 1990, inventory control improved in U.S. Kmart stores as 
reflected by a .6% decrease in consolidated inventories from 1989 levels, compared with 
a 22.3% increase in 1989. The 1990 inventory decrease was due primarily to lower 
Kmart store and distribution center inventories, offset by new stores, store expansions 
and the acquisitions of The Sports Authority and Price Savers. Decreased cash provided 
by operations in 1989 was a result of lower net income, net of the restructuring provi¬ 
sion, and higher inventories, partially offset by increased depreciation and amortization 
expense. The 1989 inventory increase was due to the acquisition of PACE, new store 
openings and expansions, and a temporary increase in the general-merchandise group, 
due to the conversion of several departments to centralized merchandising. 

Depreciation and amortization expense are recognized in determining net income, 
but do not require cash outlays. These expenses have been steadily rising each year and 
are expected to continue to increase, due to larger capital expenditures for the Kmart 
store refurbishment and expansion program and the specialty retail group's store opening 
program. 

Net cash used for investing is primarily comprised of capital expenditures for owned 
property and, in 1990, the acquisition of The Sports Authority. Price Savers and an 
equity interest in OfficeMax. Capital expenditures for the general-merchandise group, 
which included refurbishments, expansions, retail automation and store openings, were 
$63o million. $526 million and $463 million in 1990, 1989 and 1988, respectively. The 
increase in capital expenditures during 1990 is due to the Kmart store restructuring pro¬ 
gram. Capital expenditures in the specialty retail group were primarily for new store 
openings and totaled $179 million in 1990. $105 million in 1989 and $107 million in 1988. 

f!C3S •used. ^or dle acQu*sition of The Sports Authority, Price Savers and an equity 
in erest in OfficeMax totaled $255 million. Offsetting net cash used for investing in 1989 

rt amounts realized from sale and leaseback transactions totaling $75 million for 
2/ properties. 

1 • • | ap*^a! expenditures associated with the Kmart store restructuring program will 
ai)Ct eralC 'n and are expected to be completed by the mid-1990s. During 1991, 
< proximately 450-500 projects are expected to be completed compared with 208 com- 
fn' f 111 K's anticipated that cash from operations will provide the majority of 

s required to finance this program. 

(Millions) 

$900 

81 82 83 84 85 86 87 88 89 90 

Capital Expenditures 
and Depreciation and 
Amortization- 
Owned Assets 

800 

700 

600 

500 

400 

300 

200 
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m Capital 
Expenditures 

^ Depreciation and 

Amortization 
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$30 

25 

20 

15 

10 

- II.. 
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Shareholders' Book Value 
Per Share 

26 

Net cash used forfinancing was $157 million in 1990, compared with net cash pro¬ 
vided by financing of $313 million in 1989 and net cash used for financing of $207 million 
in 1988. The 1990 change resulted primarily from a smaller increase in notes payable and 
long-term borrowings. The increase in cash used for financing in 1989 was mainly a result 
of increased long-term debt and notes payable which resulted from the acquisition of PACK 
higher inventory levels and the issuance of $110 million of mortgage debt by Pay Less 
Cash used for the repurchase of stock in 1989 resulted from the company’s offer to pur¬ 
chase all shares from shareholders owning less than 1(H) shares. Approximately 13 200 
shareholders, representing 366,285 shares, took advantage of this offer designed to save 
the company administrative expenses associated with maintaining these small accounts 

Due to the seasonal nature of the retail industry, the company continues to utilize 
commercial paper and revolving credit to cover peak working capital requirements The 
approximate average short-term borrowings outstanding during 1990, 1989 and 1988 
were $1,068 million, $551 million and $401 million, respectively. The maximum amounts 
of aggregate short-term borrowings outstanding during 1990 were $1,747 million, 
compared with $1,548 million and $808 million in 1989 and 1988, respectively. Total 
short-term lines of credit available and unused were $880 million, $474 million and 
$595 million at the end of 1990,1989 and 1988, respectively. The increase in short-term 
borrowings during 1990 was due to slightly higher average inventory levels, increased 
capital expenditures, and the acquisitions of The Sports Authority, Price Savers and an 
equity interest in OfficeMax, partially offset by proceeds from the sale of Bargain 
Harold’s. The increase in short-term borrowings during 1989 was primarily a result of 
higher inventory levels and the acquisition of PACE. 

. cii,FebJiUaryI1I9?8’the comPanyflled a shelf registration covering debt offerings up 
to 8500 million. Under this shelf registration. Kmart issued $300 million of medium- 
term notes throughout 1988 at varying interest rates and maturities. The company 
intends to issue an additional $200 million of fixed-rate medium-term notes under this 
shelf registration in the first half of 1991. 

For additional information regarding these long-term debt offerings, refer to Note (J) 
of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

and pmd"!J Were 8340 million> compared with $311 million in 1989 
1989 and 21°" 1988' Vlv^ends F«ld Per share were $1.70, $1.56 and $1.28 in 1990, 
tive Oi tnhf-r m ^ comPany adoPted a dividend reinvestment plan, effec- 
shares withr n ’ ’ W •C a {>ws holders of Kmart common stock to invest in additional 
shares without incurring brokerage commissions. 

com^nSrprices^SS im-°^ inf°rmation regardinS dividends paid and 

Fiscal Quarters 
Dividends Paid 

1990 1989 

First 
Second 
Third 
Fourth 

Total Year 

Calendar Quarters 
Market I 

High Low lliuh Low 

$37% $32% $40% $34 
37 32% 39% 35:,/4 
36% 24% 44% 36 
26% 23% 40% 32»/2 

$37% $24% $44% $321/2 

ord, compared with 7 -Ir re 67,828 Kmart Corporation shareholders of rec 

listed and'^traded on Slw^£? C°rp°rati,,n ^ 
(trading symbol KM) ’ Faciflc' Midwest and Tokyo Stock Exchanges 

is 

Ratios 

Return on Investment 

Return on investment (KOI) is an important measure of the company's effective use 
of its resources. KOI measures the relationship of net income to invested capital. Net 
income is adjusted for after-tax interest expense. Invested capital or total capitalization 
consists mainly of shareholders' equity, interest bearing liabilities and debt-equivalent 
lease obligations. The company’s objective is to maximize KOI without eroding its 
competitive position. 

The following analysis shows the computation of KOI: 

(Millions) 1990 1989 1988 

Net income S 756 $ 323 $ 803 
Interest expense net of taxes 270 251 228 

Net income before financing costs $1,026 $ 574 $1,031 

Total beginning capitalization $8,968 $8,430 $7,607 

Return on beginning investment 11.4% 6.8% 13.6% 

Return on beginning investment (exclud¬ 
ing the one-time charge in 1989) 11.4% 11.8% 13.6% 

Increased KOI in 1990 was mainly due to the inclusion of a one-time charge in 1989 
for the restructuring of Kmart stores. Excluding the 1989 one-time charge. 1990 KOI 
decreased slightly resulting primarily from a higher beginning investment. Lower KOI in 
1989 resulted primarily from a decrease in general-merchandise operating income 
caused by the one-time charge related mainly to the restructuring of Kmart stores and 
the expansion of the everyday low pricing program. 

Inventory Turnover 

The inventory turnover ratio, using replacement cost as measured by the first-in, 
first-out (FIFO) method of inventory valuation, was 2.9 in 1990 and 1989, and 3.0 in 
1988. The 1990 ratio reflects a slight increase in average inventory levels resulting from 
new stores and store expansions offset by a proportional increase in sales. The decline in 
inventory turnover in 1989 resulted primarily from higher inventory levels in the general- 
merchandise group. 

Working Capital Ratio 

1 he working capital ratio demonstrates the company’s ability to meet short-term 
obligations. 1 he company’s working capital ratio was 1.8 in 1990, 1.9 in 1989 and 2.0 in 
1988. The decrease in 1990 was due to increased short-term borrowings resulting from 
I c Kmart store modernization program and acquisitions. The decline in 1989 is attribu- 
ja 1° increased short-term borrowings resulting from the acquisition of PACE and 
higher inventory levels. 
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(Billions) 
$10 

*1 82 83 84 85 86 87 8X (19 90 

Capitalization 

Ttofol Debt A Equivalent 

' Total Capitalization 

Ratio of Income to Fixed Charges 

The ratio of income to fixed charges demonstrates the company’s ability to co 
charges of a fixed nature, consisting primarily of interest expense, in relation to n t* 
income. The ratio of income to fixed charges was 2.9 in 1990, 1.9 in 1989 and 3 (j iq 
The increase in 1990 was primarily due to higher 1990 net income resulting from th ^ 
time restructuring charge in 1989. Excluding the one-time charge, the ratio dec^ °h C 
1990 mainly due to higher interest expense. In 1989, the ratio of income to fixed cfv^ " 
excluding the one-time charge, was 3.1. The decrease in 1989 resulted primarily fl.arges 
higher interest expense. y m 

Capital Structure 

The following three-year analysis of the company’s capital structure summarizes 
Kmart s total debt and equivalent and total capitalization: 

in 

% 

Long-term debt due within 
one year 

Capital lease obligations 
due within one year 

.Notes payable 

Long-term debt 

Capital lease obligations 

Other 

Total debt and equivalent 

Deferred income taxes 

Shareholders’ equity 

Total capitalization 

S 51 .5 

1989 % 1988 % 

$ ii .1 $ 1 _ 

93 1.0 89 1.1 
601 6.7 _ 

1.480 16.5 1,358 16.1 
1.549 17.3 1.588 18.8 

162 1.8 165 2.0 

3,896 43.4 3,201 38.0 
100 1.1 220 2.6 

4.972 55.5 5,009 59.4 

$8,968 100.0 $8,430 100.0 

ne increase in 1989 was primarily a result of in 
gher inventory levels and the acquisition of PACE. 
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Corporate Responsibility 

Contributions and Community Involvement 

199(1 Tf <Jarit^. contributlons of million nationwide in 
1.. .1 Ik National Institute for Burn Medicine, for example, received a $180 000 
grant for a program to teach pre-schoolers and parents about burn prevention And 
the campaign for the United Way raised over $7 million for United Way agencies in 
Kmart communities across the country. 

Since Kmart stores’ Good News programs began six years ago. Kmart associ¬ 
ates have given 1 hanksgiving dinners to more than 250,000 needv Americans 
Associates have hosted over 250,000 underprivileged children at an annual shopping 
spree that provides kids with over $5 million in holiday gifts for their families. And 
for the sixth year in a row, Kmart associates were the number one team in the March 
of Dimes WalkAmerica TeamWalk. raising over $1 million to fight birth defects. 

Education 

Corporate sponsorship of Invent America! expanded in 1990 to include a satel¬ 
lite broadcast for elementary school teachers, hosted by Kmart stores. Seminar- 
style presentations by Invent America! and others gave 20,000 teachers a hands-on 
opportunity to learn about the program and take it back to the classroom. 

Led by Chairman Joe Antonini, Kmart s education reform effort, along with the 
Business Round Table Michigan Task Force on Education, commissioned the Univer¬ 
sity of Michigan to study and make recommendations on education reform. Kmart 
became the lead partner for reform at the Cadillac Middle School under the Detroit 
Compact School program, while our KEY (Kmart Employment for Youth) pilot 
program with the University of Missouri-St. Louis graduated 50 students and 
enrolled 100. 

Environment 

As customers and employees became more aware of our environment in 1990, 
Kmart responded with several initiatives including a nationwide auto and marine bat¬ 
tery recycling program that recovered and recycled two million batteries. Kmart 
also commissioned Wayne State University in Detroit, Michigan to develop a survey 
to question our vendors about their environmental activity and the environmental 
sensitivity of their products. The survey information will help educate our custom¬ 
ers and employees. Kmart is encouraging every store to become active in local envi¬ 
ronmental programs. And Kmart is committed to making every effort to promote 
the sale of environmentally compatible consumer products. 

Minority Affairs 

Minority vendors have been important to Kmart for many years. 1 hat is why 
Chairman Joe Antonini has headed up the National Minority Supplier Development 
Council and encouraged all levels of management to join in his commitment. In 1990, 
Kmart purchased over $500 million in goods and services from minority suppliers, 
resulting in over $1 billion in sales. Kmart continues to reach out to new minority 
vendors and to develop programs to strengthen our relationships with current 
minority suppliers. 
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Reports by Management and Independent Accountants , 

Kmart 
Responsibility 
for Financial 
Statements 

Report of 
Independent 
Accountants 

Kmart Corporation management is responsible for the integrity of the information and repres * 
tions contained in this annual report. This responsibility includes making informed estimates and iuV' ' 

ments in selecting the appropriate accounting principles in the circumstances. Management believe Th 
financial statements conform with generally accepted accounting principles applied on a consistent S 
basis, except for the change in accounting for LIFO inventories made in 1990. 

To assist management in fulfilling these obligations, the company utilizes several tools, which 
include the following: 

■ The company maintains a system of internal accounting controls to provide for the integrity 
information for purposes of preparing financial statements and to assure that assets are pron°> | 
accounted for and safeguarded. This concept of reasonable assurance is based on the recognT' 
tion that the cost of the system must be related to the benefits to be derived. Management 
believes its system provides this appropriate balance. 

As part of the internal control system, the company has a policy of Standards of Business Con 
duct and Management Integrity Statements. All officers and key employees periodically submit 
a signed statement regarding compliance with these policies. 

■ An Internal Audit Department is maintained to evaluate, test and report on the application of 
internal accounting controls in conformity with standards of the practice of internal auditing. 

■ The Board of Directors appoints the independent accountants to perform an examination of the 
compam s financial statements. This examination includes, among other things, a review of the 
s\ stem of internal controls as required by generally accepted auditing standards. 

" C°mmittee of the Board of Erectors, consisting solely of outside directors meets 
regularh with management, internal auditors and the independent accountants to assure that 

have fnll^H f"8 °Ut ltS resP°nsiblllt,es- The internal auditors and independent accountants both 
have full and fee access ,o ,he Aud,, Commi„ee. with and without the pa,e„« oZna». 

7. 
J. E. Antonini 
Chairman of the Board, President 
and Chief Executive Officer 

j 
' T. F Murasky 

Senior Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer 

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Kmart Corporation 

ments of income, shareholder? equiivand"?'^hff balance s*leets an(1 tha related consolidated state- 

cial position of KmarTcZSiS ts sl“d "~S **** <*•>• » a" material respects, the finat 
results of their operations and their cash n ? dnes al JanuarV 30, 1991 and January 31,1990, and the 

January 30, MUnP«Wended 

ments are the responsibility of the conroanv's man P e auountinR Principles. These financial state- 

these financial statements based on our audits We ^ responsibilityis to express an opinion o 
dance with generally accepted auditing standard* ,|i<,nductecl our audits °f these statements in accor- 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fin^ ch.reqUire that we plan and Perform the audit to 
An audit includes examining, on a test basic; a 003 statements are free of material misstatement, 

financial statements, assessing the accounting' ence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 

agement, and evaluating the overall financial pnncip es used a°d significant estimates made by man- 

a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above^™ presentation- We believe that our audits provide 

As discussed in Note (F) to the f i 
ing retail price indices used in the valuation of nri!rvments’tbe comPany changed its method of determin 

ucuiun oi LirU inventories in 1990. 

v CJL VM U_&.U<yA«L«_ 

Renaissance Center 
Detroit, Michigan 
March 5, 1991 

Consolidated Statements of Income 

Fiscal Year Ended 

Su accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

(Millions, except per-share data) 
January 30, 

1991 
January 31, 

1990 
January 25. 

1989 

Sales $32,070 $29,533 $27,301 
Licensee fees and rental income 269 260 249 
Equity in income of affiliated retail companies 113 105 105 
Interest income 10 24 33 

32,462 29,922 27,688 

Cost of merchandise sold (including 
buying and occupancy costs) 23,895 21.745 19,914 

Selling, general and administrative expenses 6,435 6,071 5,603 
Advertising 577 571 581 
Restructuring of Kmart stores and other charges — 640 _ 

Interest expense: 
Debt 232 205 172 
Capital lease obligations 177 175 174 

31,316 29,407 26,444 

Income before income taxes 1,146 515 1.244 

Income taxes 390 192 441 

Net income for the year $ 756 $ 323 $ 803 

Earnings per common and common equivalent share S 3.78 $ 1.61 $ 4.00 

Weighted average shares 200.1 200.7 200.6 
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L Consolidated Balance Sheets 

($ Millions) 

Assets 

Current Assets: 
Cash (includes temporary investments of 

Liabilities and Shareholders* Equity 

Current Liabilities: 

Long-term debt due within one year 
Notes payable 

Accounts payable-trade 

Accrued payrolls and other liabilities 
Taxes other than income taxes 
Income taxes 

Total current liabilities 

Capital Lease Obligations 

Long-Term Debt 

Other Long-Term Liabilities including 
Kmart Restructuring Obligations 

Deferred Income Taxes 

Shareholders’ Equity: 

Common stock. 500.000,000 shares authorized- 
shares issued 204.710.587 and 204,918 993 ’ 
respectively 

Capital in excess of par value 
Restricted stock deferred compensation 
Retained earnings 
Treasury shares 
Foreign currency translation adjustment 

Total shareholders’ equity 

See 
accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Stat¬ 

$26 and $35, respectively) 
Merchandise inventories 
Accounts receivable and other current assets 

$ 278 
6.891 

727 

Total current assets 7.896 

Investments in Affiliated Retail Companies 609 

Property and Equipment-net 4.361 

Other Assets and Deferred Charges (includes goodwill, 
net of accumulated amortization, of $692 and $441, respectively) 1.033 

$13,899 

ements. 

January 3l, 
1990 

$ 353 
6.933 

698 

799 

$13,145 

$ 51 $ 11 
658 601 

2,307 2,319 
906 830 
316 322 
139 216 

4,377 4,299 

1.598 1,549 

1.701 i 1,480 

682 745 

157 100 

205 205 
593 602 

(2) (1) 
4,753 4,341 

(131) (146) 
(34) (29) 

5,384 4,972 

$13,899 $13,145 

32 

Fiscal Year Ended 

(Millions) 
January 30, 

1991 

' 
January 31, 

i990 
January 25. 

1989 

Cash Provided by (Used for): 

Operations 

Net income $ 756 $ 323 $ 803 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to operating cash flows: 

Depreciation and amortization 497 461 437 
Restructuring of Kmart stores and other charges (70) 582 
Deferred income taxes 159 (164) 8 
Undistributed equity income (37) (35) (42) 
Increase (decrease) in other long-term liabilities 111) 22 97 
Other-net (55) 29 53 

Cash provided by (used for) current assets and 
current liabilities: 
(Increase) decrease in inventories 92 (1.042) (86) 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (66) (216) 19 
Other-net (101) (76) (73) 

Total provided by (used for) continuing retail operations 1.164 (116) 1.216 

Total provided by (used for) discontinued operations (10) 13 (5) 

Net cash provided by (used for) operations 1.154 (103) 1,21 i 

Investing 

Capital expenditures-owned property (814) (631) (570) 
Acquisitions (255) (268) — 

Proceeds from the sale of assets 53 147 117 
Other-net (56) (53) (52) 

Net cash used for investing (1.072) (805) (505) 

Financing 

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 
and notes payable 289 718 346 

Reduction in long-term debt and notes payable (8) (1) (184) 

Reduction in capital lease obligations (102) (92) (96) 

Common stock issued 4 14 16 

Purchase of treasury shares - ! (15) (33) 

Dividends paid (340) (311) (256) 

Net cash provided by (used for) financing (157) 313 (207) 

^it Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Equivalents (75) (595) 499 

Cash and Equivalents at Beginning of Year 353 948 449 

Cash and Equivalents at End of Year $ 278 $ 353 $ 948 

ccompany ing Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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[ Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity 

Common Stock 

SI Par Value 

Shares Issued 

Treasury 

Shares ($ Millions) 
Common 

Stock 

Capital in 

Excess of 

Par Value 

Restricted 

Stock 

Deferred 

Compensation 

Retained 

Earnings 
Treasury 

Shares 

203,512,539 3,807,262 Balance at January 27, 1988 

Net income for the year 

Cash dividends declared, 

$1.32 per share 

Common stock sold under 
781,218 stock option plans 

Purchase of treasury shares. 
1,054,600 at cost 

Foreign currency translation 
adjustment 

$204 $572 $- $ (98) 

Foreign 

Currency 

Translation 
Adjust ment 

$(75) 

20-1,293,757 4,861,862 Balance at January 25,1989 

Net income for the year 

Cash dividends declared, 
$1.64 per share 

Common stock sold under 
stock option plans 

Common stock issued under 
restricted stock plan 

Purchase of treasury shares. 
366,285 at cost 

Foreign currency translation 
adjustment 

16 

204 588 

(33) 

Total 

Share¬ 

holders’ 
Equity 

^4,409 

803 

204,918,993 5,228,147 BalanceatJanuary31,1990 

Net income for the year 

Cash dividends declared, 
$1.72 per share 

Common stock sold under 
stock option plans 

Common stock issued under 
restricted stock plan 

Retirement of treasury' and 
(366,285) common shares, at cost 

Foreign currency translation 
adjustment 

13 

4,345 

323 

(327) 

(131) 

(1) 

205 602 (1) 

204,710.587 1.861.862 Balanceat January 30.1991 

(344) 

(1) 

S205 

(15) 

$593 $(2) 

(15) 

(146) 

78 

5.009 

323 

(327) 

14 

$4,753 

4,972 

756 

(344) 

15 

$(131) 

(5) (5) 

$(3-4)1 $5,38-1 

Ten million shares of no par value preferred sfnrlt with , 

designated Series A jurnor Participating Preferred Stock. S f*1 aUthorized but unissued. Of these, 500, (XX) shares have been 

In May 1988. the company distributed a stock „„rrha I ' 'SSUance of preferred «**• 

^^Se^r °ne',hrand,h of a ^ of jaulr of ^ c~ Stock. Each right entitles the share- 
acauires r au* ^ ?C PnC,e’ shares ^marl common stock having a value twice the nt/hr’ ^ ^ exerc‘se price $11(), or to purchase, at the right’s 
comnanvs cr V° ownershjp of ^ or more of the company’s then outstanrfS eXerC,Se price' ri^ts are exercisable only if a person or group 
company s common stock and the Board of Directors determines tha^^di ^nershm^aH10^ COmm*,n stoc^* or* if the person or group acquires 10% of the 

e accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements VCFSe l°1 e *on^*term interests of the company and its shareholders. 

i A) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

,ivdy. Fiscal year KSp“' 

for by the equity method using their December financial statf-mf-nr 411 ’ )r more are counted 
transactions and accounts have been eliminated in consolidation. ’ S,gIuf,cant ,ntercompany 

Eamings PZ Common <md CrnT Equwalent Share: The company computes earnings per 
common and common equivalent share by dividing net income by toe weighted average number 
of shares of common stock and dilutive common stock equivalents outstanding during each vSr 
1 he number erf common shares is increased by the number of shares issuable under the Stock 
Option F Ians, less the number of shares that are assumed to have been repurchased at average 
market prices with the proceeds of sales under the plans. 

Foreign Operations: Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars at the 
ext hange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Results of operations are translated at average 
exchange rates during the period for revenues and expenses. Translation gains and losses 
resulting from fluctuations in the exchange rates are accumulated as a separate component of 
shareholders’ equity. 

Inventories: Merchandise inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market, primarily using 
the retail method, on the last-in, first-out basis for substantially all domestic inventories and the 
first-in, first-out basis for the remainder. 

Property Owned: Land, buildings, leasehold improvements and equipment are recorded at cost. 
Major replacements and refurbishings are charged to the property accounts while replacements, 
maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the life of the respective assets are 
expensed currently. The company capitalizes interest cost as part of the cost of constructing 
capital assets. The cost of all properties retired and the accumulated depreciation thereon are 
eliminated from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss is taken into income. 

Depreciation: The company computes depreciation on owned property principally on the straight- 
line method for financial statement purposes and on accelerated methods for income tax pur¬ 
poses. Most store properties are leased and improvements are amortized over the term of the 
lease but not more than 25 years. Other annual rates used in computing depreciation for financial 
statement purposes are 29c to 49 for buildings, 109c to 14# for store fixtures and 59c to 33# for 
other fixtures and equipment. 

Leased Property under Capital Leases: The company accounts for capital leases, which transfer 
substantially all of the benefits and risks incident to the ownership of property as the acquisition 
of an asset and the incurrence of an obligation. Under this method of accounting for leases, the 
asset is amortized using the straight-line method and the obligation, including interest thereon, 
is liquidated over the life of the lease. All other leases (operating leases) are accounted for by 
recording periodic rental expense over the life of the lease. 

Licensee Sales: The company’s policy is to exclude sales of licensed departments from total sales. 
Sales from licensed departments are primarily comprised of sales from the Meldisco subsidiaries 
of Melville Corporation. See Note (H) for further information regarding licensee sales of Meldisco. 

Pre-Opening and Closing Costs: The company includes store operating costs incurred prior to 
opening a new retail unit in current period expenses. When the decision to close a retail unit is 
made, the company provides for future net lease obligations, nonrecoverable investments in 
fixed assets, other expenses directly related to discontinuance of operations and estimated 

operating losses through expected closing dates. 

Income Taxes: Deferred income taxes are provided on nonpermanent differences between financial 
statement and taxable income. The company accrues appropriate U.S. and foreign taxes payable on 
all of the earnings of subsidiaries and affiliates, except with respect to earnings that are intended 
to be permanently reinvested, or are expected to be distributed free of additional tax by operation 
of relevant statutes currently in effect and by utilization of available tax credits and deductions. 
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(B) Acquisitions, New Ventures and Dispositions 

In December 1990. PACE Membership Warehouse. Inc. (PACE), a wholly owned subsidiary of 
Kmart Corporation, acquired Price Savers Wholesale. Inc. At the date of acquisition. Price 
Savers operated 17 membership warehouse clubs in five western states. Price Savers member¬ 
ship warehouses are similar to those of PACE and it is anticipated that Price Savers locations will 
be converted to PACE operations in the first half of fiscal 1991. The Price Savers acquisition has 
been accounted for as a purchase, and accordingly, the results of operations have been consoli¬ 
dated with those of the company from the date of acquisition. The $166 million excess of cost over 
the fair value of the assets acquired is being amortized on a straight-line basis over 40 years. 

In October 1990, Kmart Canada Limited sold its Bargain Harolds Discount Limited subsidiary to 
Quebec Equity Capital at book value. The sale reflected management's decision to reinvest capital 
resources in higher yielding retail activities. In conjunction with the sale, the company has tem¬ 
porarily guaranteed a revolving credit agreement for up to $17 million. 

In March 1990, the company acquired The Sports Authority. Inc., headquartered in Fort Lauder¬ 
dale. Florida. At January 30. 1991. The Sports Authority operated a chain of 19 large format. 
40.000 to 50,000-square-foot retail units offering a broad range of sporting goods and apparel at 
everyday low prices. The acquisition has been accounted for as a purchase, and accordingly, the 
results of operations have been consolidated from the date of acquisition. The $70 million excess of 
cost over the fair value of assets acquired is being amortized on a straight-line basis over 40 years. 

Effective November 1990, Kmart Corporation acquired a 21.6% interest in OfficeMax, Inc., 
operator of a chain of deep-discount office supply super stores. At January 30 1991 OfficeMax 
operated 46 stores in eight midwestern states. A typical OfficeMax store occupies 23 000 square 
feet featuring 6.000 office supply items, furniture and electronics at everyday low prices Prior to 

Kmart s investment OfficeMax purchased Kmart s five Office Square concept stores. Kmart s 
imestment in OfficeMax will be accounted for under the equity method. The $22 million excess 

Kman S °f ^fair ValUC °f 3SSetS 'S be'ng amortized on a straight-line basis over 4U years. 

$255^SlioSnd f°r ^1990 aCqU'sitions of Price Savers- The SP°rts Authority and OfficeMax was 

coSvarauS^vli^K COrPfo^aCquired FACE Membership Warehouse. Inc. The 

aniereer wi!h a whnT a °f ^ f°r $23 ^ share in cash thmugh a tender offer and 
PACeIs headauarre^<,nTd|SUbSld!arr -1 he t0tal Value of the transaction was $326 million, 
warehousedtS ^ ' Cola"d* 3nd at January ^ 1991 operated 78 membership 
tuples S «aVerS Warebouses-in 20 states- A PACE warehouse typically 
PACE acquisition has td ’ ° mem*)ers groceries and general merchandise. The 

have been consolidated withCfh°Un ^ !°r 3S 3 purc^ase' and accordingly, the results of operations ZSSSSZSST*'*thC C°mpany fr°m the ** of acquisition. The $256million 
over40years! ' °f 3SSetS 3CqU,red is bein* “tized on a straight-line basis 

wholly"owned subsidiary^! 1V.<,)J"P^rat'on purchased a 51% ownership interest in Makro Inc., a 

chased SHV s reSS? A^nca Ration (SHV). Kmart Corporation pur- 

1990. eight of the nine Makro 5SMakr° effeCtlVe November 1989. During the first half of 
was closed. The expenses associated 'To,converted t0 PACE membership warehouses and one 
restructuring. Kmart consolidated , u ^^ t|b'S ^onversion were included in the 1989 provision for 
acquisition. e resu ts °f Makro operations from the March 1988 date of 

(C) Reserve for Restructuring of Kmart Stores and Other Charges 

Net of taxes, the 

with Kmart stores which will be closed relocated enlarged nrr f C°StS associated 

store closings and relocations as we I as estimated fixed asset wriJ <t (,D |gations for 

*“«*• for a„ affeced stores. The 

closings, fixture write-offs associated with the refurbishment of previously SSL 

Square stores, the cost of converting Makro warehouse locations into PACE number hip ware¬ 
houses and the settlement of certain non-routine legal matters including the FaZXusXa- 
t.°n which was settled following the appellate court’s reversal of the judgment against 
company. Store closing expense net of tax for 1988 was $18 million. At January 30 1991 the 

reserve for the store modernization program is considered adequate. ' ’ 

<D) Discontinued Operations 

During 1989. the company sold KM Insurance Company and Victoria Lloyds Insurance Company. 
During 1988. Kmart sold Lone Star Life Insurance Company, terminated the agreement for the 
operation of store insurance centers and terminated the lease of the insurance operations’ head¬ 
quarters. I he reserve for the disposition of the company’s discontinued insurance operations is 
considered adequate at January 30, 1991. 

(E) Supplemental Cash Flow Information 

I he company incurred capital lease obligations to obtain store facilities and equipment of 
$160 million. $58 million and $124 million in 1990. 1989 and 1988. respectively. Noncash charges 
related to store restructuring were $57 million in 1990. These noncash transactions have been 
excluded from the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. 

The company considers cash on hand in stores, deposits in banks, certificates of deposit and 
short-term marketable securities with maturities of 90 days or less as cash and cash equivalents 
for the purposes of the statement of cash flows. The effect of changes in foreign exchange rates 
on cash balances is not material. 

Cash paid for interest and income taxes follows: 

(Millions) 1990 1989 1988 

Interest (net of amounts capitalized) $407 $370 $330 

Income taxes $337 $371 $423 

0*) Merchandise Inventories 

A summary of inventories by method of pricing and the excess of current cost over stated 

LIFO value due to inflation follows: 

January 30, January 31, 

(Millions) 1991 1990 

Last-in, first-out (cost not in excess of market) $6,295 $6,288 

Lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market 596 645 

Total $6,891 $6,933 

Excess of current cost over stated LIFO value $1,045 $ 988 
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(F) Merchandise 
Inventories 
continued 

During 1990. the company changed its method of accounting for LIFO inventories in U.S. Knu 
stores. Prior to 1990, the company used the U.S. Department of Labor s Department Store prj 

Index to measure inflation in retail prices. In 1990, the company developed and used internal ** 
price indices to measure inflation in the retail prices of its merchandise inventories. The coma 
believes the use of internal indices results in a more accurate measurement of the impact of jnfl 
tion in the prices of merchandise sold in its stores. Tins change reduced the LIFO charge in lyqn 
by $105 million net of tax. or $.52 per share. The company was not able to determine the cumul ’ 
tive effect of this change nor the impact on any individual year prior to 1990. a' 

(G) Property and Equipment 

The components of property and equipment are: 

(Millions) 

Property owned: 

Land 

Buildings 

Leasehold improvements 

Furniture and fixtures 

Construction in progress 

Property under capital leases 

Less-accumulated depreciation and amortization: 
Property owned 

Property under capital leases 

Total 

$ 142 

104 

1.020 

4.098 

92 

2,583 

8.339 

(2.7201 

(1,258) 

$4,361 

S 115 

353 

866 

3.683 

53 

2,437 

7,507 

(2.483) 

(1.174) 

$3,850 

'Hi Investments in Affiliated Retail Companies 

Meldisco Subsidiaries of Melville ( orporation 

subsidiaries of the Melvni^CorDorabon^ °Perated under license agreements with the Meldisco 

and 5197 owned by Melville. Meldisco -,k,SU fantlajy al1 of whlch are 49% owned by the company 
undera license agreement Fees and in • uperate®footwear departments in Pay Less Drug stores 

1988 of $182 mill,on. $174 million and Under the license dements in 1990,1989 and 
rental income. The company seauitv m |l0n’ resPectively, are included in licensee fees and 

dividends received in 1990,1989 and 1988 were as f '|f ^ootwear departments in Kmart stores and 

1990 1989 1988 

s 46 $ 43 $ 43 

s’ 44 $ 39 $ 35 

Equity in income of Meldisco operations 

Dividends 

Meldisco subsidiaries summarized financial information follows: 

Coles Myer Ltd. 

The company has a 22.0% equity interest in Coles Myer Ltd., the largest retailer in Australia. 

Income earned under the Kmart license agreement of S3 million in both 1990 and 1989 and $4 mil¬ 
lion in 1988 is included in licensee fees and rental income. The company’s equity in the income of 
Coles Myers operations, dividends, year-end investment in Coles Myer and the market value of 
Coles Myers common stock owned by the company follows: 

(Millions U.S. S) 1990 

Equity in income 

Dividends 

Equity of Kmart Corporation 

Market value of Coles Myer s common stock 

$ 68 

$ 33 

S 460 

$ 712 

1989 1988 

$ 62 $ 61 

$ 32 $ 29 

$ 411 $ 406 

$ 754 $ 830 

The increase in equity income in 1990 is attributable to Coles Myers improved gross margins, a 
lower effective income tax rate and good expense control in a difficult retail environment. Equity 
in income in 1989 was relatively unchanged due primarily to a sluggish Australian economy in the 
latter half of 1989. The average exchange rates from Australian to U.S. dollars were .7806 in 

1990, . 7920 in 1989 and. 7847 in 1988. 

The cumulative effect of translating the company’s equity in the investment in Coles Myer was a 
reduction of $38 million as of January 30.1991, a reduction of $27 million as of January 31,1990, 

and as of January 25, 1989, an increase of $3 million. 
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(H) Investments in 
Affiliated Retail 
(ompanies continued 

Summarized financial information adjusted for conformity with U.S. generally accepted account 
ing principles for Coles Myer s most recent fiscal years follows: 

Fiscal Year Ended 

(I) Income Taxes 

(Millions U.S. $) 

July 25, 
i990 

July 30, 
1989 

July 31, 
1988 

Net sales $11,347 $11,310 
~~$(U42 

Net income $ 251 $ 226 $ 205 
' 

(Millions U.S. $) 
July 25. 

iooo 
July 30, 

i989 
July 31, 

1988 
Current assets 
Noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

$ 1.704 
2,413 

S 4,117 

$ 1.469 
2.204 

$ 3,673 

$1,378 
2.297 

$3,675 

Current liabilities 
Noncurrent liabilities 
Equity 

Total liabilities and equity 

$ 1,385 
1,005 
1,727 

S 4,117 
— 

$ 1,426 
765 

1.482 

$ 3,673 

$1,295 
913 

1.467 

$3,675 

1 he company and Coles Myer have guaranteed indebtedness related to certain properties in 
Australia on a joint and several basis. Coles Myer subsequently indemnified Kmart Corporation 

[eed wl $23 m!llTonUrned PUrSU3nt l° 'tS guarantees' As of January 30. 1991. the amount guaran- 

aff'llateS included ,n consolidated retained earnings were 

Components of income before income taxes follows: 

Current: 
Federal 
State and local 
Foreign 

Deferred: 

Restructuring of Kmart stores 
and other charges 

Excess of tax over book 
depreciation 

LIFO inventory 
Lease capitalization 
Other 

Total income taxes 

(J> Long-Term Debt 

A reconciliation of the federal statutory rate to the company’s effective tax 
rate follows: 

(Millions) 1990 1989 1988 1990 1989 1988 
$390 $175 $423 34.0% 34.0% 34.0% 

38 
(8) 

38 
(8) 

53 
(10) 

3.3 
(.7) 

7.4 
(1.6) 

4.3 
(.8) 

(33) 
3 

$390 

(31) 
18 

$192 

(31) 
6 

$441 

(2.9) 
.3 

34.07c 

(6.0) 
3.5 

37.3% 

(2.5) 
.5 

35.5% 

Federal statutory rate 
State and local taxes, 

net of federal tax benefit 
Tax credits 
Equity in income of 

affiliated retail companies 
subject to lower tax rates 

Other 

Total income taxes 

The amounts shown on the consolidated balance sheets for deferred income taxes result princi- 
pally from the difference between financial statement and income tax depreciation and the cost of 
merchandise sold m 1990 reduced by the 1989 Kmart store restructuring provision and the effect 
of accounting for certain leases as capital leases. 

Undistributed earnings of subsidiaries totaled $182 million at January 30.1991. 

Financial Accounting Standard No. 96 (FAS 96) “Accounting for Income Taxes” was issued in 
December 1987 and was effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15.1988. Financial 
Accounting Standard No. 103 was issued in 1989 and delayed the mandatory date of implementa¬ 
tion for FAS 96 to fiscal years beginning after December 15. 1991. Kmart did not elect application 
in 1990. The FASB has continued deliberations over the final provisions of the statement into 
1991. The provisions of FAS 96 generally follow the liability method of accounting for income 
taxes. Accordingly, the statement requires adjustment of a deferred tax liability or asset for the 
effect of a change in tax law or rates. The effect shall be included in income for the period that 
includes the enactment date. Had Kmart adopted FAS 96 in 1990. the company would have recog¬ 
nized a credit due to a reduction in deferred tax liabilities. 

(Millions) 

January 30. 
1991 

January 31, 
i990 

8%% debentures due 2017 
(net of unamortized discount of $10 as of January 30, 1991) $ 290 $ 290 

10lA% debentures due 2017 200 200 

8l/s% debentures due 1997 
(net of unamortized discount of $1) 199 199 

\2V*% notes due 1995 
(net of unamortized discount of $1) 149 149 

Medium-term notes due 1991 through 1998 295 300 

12'/2% debentures due 2005 100 100 

Notes payable 200 — 

Mortgages 209 179 

Other 110 74 

Total 1,752 1,491 

Portion due within one year 51 11 

Long-term debt $1,701 $1,480 

In October 1989, Pay Less Drug Stores Northwest. Inc., issued a mortgage note payable of 
$110 million. The note bears an interest rate of 9W& and is secured by various Pay Less proper- 
ties. Interest and principal are payable through monthly installments from November 1, y o 
October 1, 2004. The note is redeemable in whole on any installment payment date. 
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(J) Long-Term 
Debt continued 

In February 1988, Kmart Corporation filed a shelf registration statement with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission covering a proposed offering of up to $5(X) million principal amount of debt 
securities. As of January 31. 1990. the company had issued $3(X) million fixed-rate medium-term 
notes of which $295 million are still outstanding. During 1990, the company retired $5 million of 
these notes. The remaining notes mature fiscal years 1991 through 1998 and have an average cou 
pon rate of 9.26%. The company has classified $200 million of notes payable as long-term debt at 
January 30. 1991 based on its intention to issue $200 million of medium-term notes during the first 
half of 1991. 

The $200 million 10V>% debentures due December 1, 2017 are redeemable at 100% of the 
principal amount through annual sinking fund payments on December 1, 1998 through 2016 of not 
less than $10 million or more than $30 million. Prior to December 1, 1997, the company may not 
redeem any debentures from or in anticipation of borrowed funds having an interest cost to the 
company of less than 10.5% per year. The debentures are otherwise redeemable in whole or in 
part, at any time at the option of the company, at prices declining from 110.5% to 100% of the 
principal amount. 

The $300 million 83/«% debentures due January 15, 2017 are redeemable at 1(X)% of the principal 
amount through annual sinking fund payments on Januarv 15, 1998 through 2016 of not less than 
$to million or more than $45 million. Prior to January 15. 1997, the company may not redeem anv 
debentures from or in anticipation of borrowed funds having an interest cost to the company of 
less than 8.7% per year. The debentures are otherwise redeemable, in whole or in part at anv 
time at the option of the company, at prices declining from 108.4% to 100% of the princiDal 

The $200 million1debentures due January 1.1997 are not redeemable prior to July 1 1993 
On or after that date the debentures may be redeemed, at the option of the company in whole or 
in part, at any time at 100% of the principal amount plus interest accrued to the date of redemption. 

d^ SfaMK !Tltn0teS T dUe MafChA1995 and the $10° million of 121*% debentures are 
e. larch 1. 2005. The respective notes and debentures are not redeemable prior to maturity. 

'n° rev0lv'ng credit agreements With various banks in the aggregate 

on theTucL^ ^e company pays interest 
rate swap agreements outstanding udth tJar|uary 30, 19y1, the company had two interest 

amount of $150 million. The variable rate is a^akullSh5' ?VmR 3 ,t0tal notional PrinciPal 
30-day commercial paper TheTe acre^n,! a b°"d ettuivalent based on the rate for 
average effective interest rate on rh^tT P‘re dunnK flscal >’ears 1992-1995. The weighted 
limited exposure to credit loss for the ^unnR 1990 was 7.4%. The company has 
mance by the other parties. eren la between interest rates in the event of nonperfor- 

iSS i'S$Ssubsequent to 199<)’in millionSi are: 

(L)Leases 

At January 30. 1991. the company had bank lines of credit aggregating, mi.ii , u 
for interest rates not exceeding the “prime" lendint? rate nn^,?R 8880 n whlch Provide 
port of certain lines of credit, it is expected that comrv>n« borrowings thereunder. In sup- 

posit with the banks, which will average 10% of the line to thT t W1 * ** maintamed on d«- 
additional 10% on (he portion use. Si other Ires ^ ,n *> and » 
antes. The company is free to withdraw the entile balance m „s aaZtsaam'hlT’83""8 

average interest rates were 7.2% and 8.3%, respectively. ^ " 1990 and 1989 weighted 

Description of Leasing Arrangements: The company conducts operations primarily in leased 
facilities, Kmart store leases are generally for terms of 25 years with multiple five-vear renewal 
options which allow the company the option to extend the life of the lease up to 50 vears bevond 
the initial noncancellable term. Substantially all specialty retail units are leased generallv for 
terms varying from five to 25 years with varying renewal options. 

Certain leases prov ide for additional rental payments based on a percent of sales in excess of a 
specified base. Also, certain leases provide for the payment by the lessee of executory costs 
(taxes, maintenance and insurance). Some selling space has been sublet to other retailers in 
certain of the company's leased facilities. 

Lease Commitments: Future minimum lease payments with respect to capital and operating 
leases are: 

Minimum 
Lease Payments 

(Millions) Capital Operating 

Fiscal Year: 
1991 S 368 $ 543 
1992 360 518 
1993 350 491 
1994 338 467 
1995 329 445 
Later years 3,058 3.994 

Total minimum lease payments 4,803 6,458 
Less-minimum sublease rental income — (263) 

Net minimum lease payments 4,803 6.195 

Less: 
Estimated executory costs (1.479) (602) 

Amount representing interest (1.624) (2.866) 

1,700 2,727 

Portion due within one year 102 175 

Long-term obligations under leases $1,598 $2,552 
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(L) Leases continued The company has guaranteed indebtedness related to certain leased properties financed hv 
. * . _i_A „ I-- lOOl fritqI omnnnt tnio«-nn+-1 in¬ dustrial revenue bonds. As of January 30. 1991, the total amount of guaranteed indebtedness 

$307 million, of which $102 million is included in capital lease obligations. The agreements e ^ 
during the fiscal years 2004-2009. The company’s exposure to credit loss, in the event of non* 
formance by the other parties to the agreements, is $205 million. However, no concentration^ 

credit risk exists and the company does not anticipate nonperformance by the counterparties0 

Rental Expense: A summary of operating lease rental expense and short-term rentals follows* 

(Millions) 1990 

Minimum rentals $556 
Percentage rentals 58 
Less-sublease rentals (58) 

Total $556 

expense versus rent expense on capital leases is as follows: 

1989 1988 
$466 $402 

60 57 
(57) J54) 

$469 $405 

(Millions) 

Amortization of capital lease property 
Interest expense related to 

obligations under capital leases 

Amounts charged to earnings 
Related minimum lease payments net of 

executory costs 

Excess of amounts charged over 
related minimum lease payments 

1990 1989 1ST 
$105 $102 $100 

176 175 174 
281 277 274 

(2721 (265) (261) 

$ 9 $ 12 $ 13 
- ~ i 

Related mirumum lease payments above exclude executory costs for 1990 1989 and 1988 ;n 
amounts of $88 million, $85 million and $82 million. respectively. ^ 

(M, Business (.roup Information 

retailing« January 30.1991. include PACE. t**?“ •&*>' 
and The Sports Authority. Business group information foll.iwy ’ U 8 St0res' "al*ntx"fe 

(Millions) 

Sales 
General merchandise 
Specialty retail 

Total 

Licensee fees and other income 
General merchandise 
Specialty retail 

Total 
Equity in income of affiliated retail companies 

Total revenues from operations 

Operating income 
General merchandise 
Specialty retail 

Total 

Equity in income of affiliated retail companies 
Interest expense-Debt 

-Capital lease obligations 
Corporate expense 

Income before income taxes 
Income taxes 

Net income 

Identifiable assets 
General merchandise 
Specialty retail 

Total 

Investments in affiliated retail companies 
Assets of discontinued operations 

Total assets 

Capital expenditures-Owned and leased 
General merchandise 
Specialty retail 

Total capital expenditures 

Depreciation and amortization expense 
General merchandise 
Specialty retail 

Total depreciation and amortization expense 

“Operating income in 1989 for the general-merchandise and specialty retail groups was reduced by $598 million and 
$42 million, respectively, due to the Kmart restructuring provision and other charges. 

In October 1990, Kmart Canada Limited sold Bargain Harold s Discount Limited to Quebec 
Equity Capital at book value. 
Amounts for 1989 have been restated for the transfer of PACE Membership Warehouse, Inc. 
from the general-merchandise group to the specialty retail group. Certain other rec assi ica ions 
were made in 1989 and 1988. 
Identifiable assets are those assets of the company associated with a specific business group' or 
discontinued operations. Corporate and foreign assets are insignificant. n\es nienis ini a 
retail companies include the company’s investments in Coles Myer, Me disco an c 
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1990 1989 1988 

$24,891 S24.616 $23,215 
7.179 4.917 4.086 

32,070 29,533 27,301 

266 274 273 
13 10 9 

279 284 282 
113 105 105 

$32,462 $29,922 $27,688 

$ 1.307 $ 716* $ 1.436 
167 91* 72 

1,474 807 1.508 

113 105 105 
(232) (205) (172) 
(176) (175) (174) 

(33) (17) (23) 

1,146 515 1,244 
390 192 441 

S 756 $ 323 $ 803 

S 9.640 $ 9,643 S 9,132 
3.581 2.923 2.402 

13,221 12,566 11,534 
609 512 506 
69 67 86 

$13,899 $13,145 $12,126 

S 790 $ 579 $ 586 
184 110 108 

S 974 $ 689 $ 694 

S 405 $ 389 $ 374 

92 72 63 

$ 497 $ 461 $ 437 
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(N) Pension Plans 
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The company and its domestic subsidiaries have noncontributory pension plans covering most 
employees who meet certain requirements of age, length of service and hours worked per year 
Benefits paid to retirees are based upon age at retirement, years of credited service and earnings 
Kmart Canada Limited employees are covered by a defined contribution plan. The company’s 
policy is to fund at least the minimum amounts required by the Employee Retirement Income 
Security Act of 1974. The plans’ assets consist primarily of equity securities, fixed income 
securities, guaranteed insurance contracts and real estate. The company made no contribution 
to its principal pension plan in fiscal 1990, 1989 or 1988. 

Pension expense was $55 million for 1990, $54 million in 1989 and $35 million in 1988. The 
assumed discount rate for the company’s primary pension plan was 9.0% for 1990, 1989 and 1988 
Pension expense for 1990 and 1989 increased from 1988 primarily due to plan amendments. 

For the company’s principal pension plans, the following tables summarize the funded status 
components of pension cost and actuarial assumptions under FAS 87: 

(Millions) 

Actuarial value of benefit obligations: 
Estimated present value of vested benefits 
Estimated present value of non-vested benefits 

Accumulated benefit obligation 
Value of future pay increases 

Projected benefit obligation 
Estimated market value of plan assets 

Plan assets over (under) projected benefit obligation 
Unrecognized net asset 
Unrecognized prior service cost 
Unrecognized net (gain) loss 

Accrued pension costs 

January 30, January 31, January 25, 
i991 i990 i989 

S (791) $ (670) $(597) 
(157) (137) (97) 
(951) (807) (694) 
(205) (235) (177) 

(1,156) (1,042) (871) 
1,070 1.045 986 

(86) 3 115 
(128) (136) (144) 

61 87 20 
14 (51) (47) 

S (136) $ (97) $ (56) 

($ Millions) 

Components of pension expense: 
Normal service cost 
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 
Return on plan assets 

Net amortization and deferral of other components 
Total 

Actuarial assumptions: 
Discount rates 
Expected return on plan assets 
Salary increases 

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal 
1990 1989 1988 

S 52 $ 50 $ 44 
93 88 72 

(61) (100) (126) 
(44) 5 35 

$ 40 $ 43 $ 25 

9.0% 9.0% 9.0% 
9.5% 9.5% 9.5% 
5.0% 5.0% 1 5.0% 

dard No. 106 “EmployersA^unUneforP^t^t0^^8 ^ard issued Financial Accounting Star 
statement Benefi‘* °ther Tha" Pensions." This 
insurance. Implementation is not required uISSstSSS? SUCh 3S hea,th and Hl 
to be material since the company does not ,,ff ... • -r "e mpdct on the company is not expect* 
employees other than through its pension plans lgniflCant P°stretirement benefits to its 

!()) Employe1’ 

The Employee Savings Flan provides that employees of the 
have attained atte 21 and temple,ed one 'Year of Service' tan inv»l STlSfcS? 

hit. or her earntntts. the company w,„ contrthttte an SltSSS;" 
Kmart common stock fund. LCU in ine 

Company contributions to the Kmart common stock fund may be remitted to the Trustee in cash 
or in the form of company common stock. Contributions remitted to the Trustee in cash may ? 
used to acquire Kmart common stock on the open market or directly from the company by su£ 
scription or purchase. ^ y • 

As of June 17.1986. 5.517.750 shares of Kmart common stock were made available for issuance 
or sale to the Irustee. consisting of 2.517.750 treasury shares and 3,000.000 authorized but 
unissued shares. As of January 30. 1991. 4.128.062 shares remained available The company’s 
expense related to the Employee Savings Plan was $47 million for 1990. $44 million in 1989 and 
$37 million in 1988. 

(Pi Restricted Stock Plan 

The Restricted Stock Plan, which was approved by shareholders in May 1988, authorizes the 
Compensation and Incentives Committee to grant awards to officers and other key employees of 
the company, consisting of shares of restricted common stock of the company or an agreement to 
issue stock upon the satisfaction of specified terms and conditions. Restricted shares are held in 
custody by the company until the expiration or termination of the restrictions. If the conditions or 
terms under which an award is granted are not satisfied, the shares are forfeited. Compensation 
expense is based on the stock price at the date restricted stock is issued or ending market price 
for those shares subject to other terms and conditions and is accrued over the periods in which an 
employee performs service. In 1990. the company recorded $2 million of compensation expense 
related to the Restricted Stock Plan. 

Under the Restricted Stock Plan, awards for up to 2.000,000 shares of common stock may be 
granted through March 21. 1998. Outstanding awards granted under the Restricted Stock Plan at 
January 30. 1991 totaled 228.976 shares of restricted stock or stock to be issued upon the satisfac¬ 
tion of terms and conditions prescribed by the Compensation and Incentives Committee. As of 
January 30. 1991, 1,771.024 shares were available for the grant of additional awards. 
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Under the company’s 1973 Stock Option Plan, as most recently amended in 1987. options to 
acquire up to 10,500,000 shares of common stock may be granted to officers and key employees at 
no less than 100% of the fair market value on the date of grant. 

The 1973 Plan also provides for stock appreciation rights (SARs) in tandem with nonqualified 
stock options (NQSOs) for officers and eligible directors who are limited under the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 in transactions involving shares of the company’s stock. Such an optionee 
may request that the Compensation and Incentives Committee permit the optionee to surrender 
all or part of an exercisable option in return for stock, cash or a combination of both equal to any 
appreciation in the value of the surrendered shares over the option price. Compensation expense 
for 1990 resulted in a nominal credit due to fluctuations in the market price of the company’s 
common stock relative to the grant price. Credits to compensation expense were approximately 
$1 million in 1989 and 1988. 

Under the terms of the 1981 Stock Option Plan, options to acquire up to 12, (XX), (XX) shares of com¬ 
mon stock may be granted to officers and other key employees of the company at no less than 
100% of the fair market value on the date of grant. Options under the 1981 Plan may be either 
incentive stock options (ISOs) pursuant to Section 422A of the Internal Revenue Code or NQSOs 

Such options under the 1973 and 1981 plans may have a maximum term of 10 years as to an ISO 
and a maximum term of 10 years and two days as to an NQSO and are exercisable two years after 
the date of grant, except that an ISO granted prior to 1987 shall not be exercised by an optionee 
who has a prior ISO outstanding. The two-year limitation does not apply if employment termi¬ 
nates due to total and permanent disability or death, in the event of a change of control of the com¬ 
pany or if and to the extent the Compensation and Incentives Committee may so determine in its 
discretion. Payment upon exercise of an option may be made in cash, already owned shares or a 
combination of both. Such shares will be valued at their fair market value as of the date of exer¬ 
cise. SARs do not apply to options under the 1981 Plan. 

Pertinent information covering the stock option plans follows: 

Outstanding at beginning of year 
Granted 

Exercised 

Cancelled 

Outstanding at end of year 

Exercisable at end of year 

Available for grant at end of year 

1990 

Number 
of Shares 

Option Price 

Per Share 

8.200.944 S12.87-S-13.88 
1,315.900 26.75- 35.81 
(135,084) 12.87- 3-1.31 
(148.056) 12.87- 43.88 

9.233.704 S12.87-S-13.88 

6.7S1.303 S12.87-S43.88 

6.145.883 

1989 

Number 

of Shares 
Option Price 

Per Share 

7,924,142 S12.87-S43.88 

1.261,000 36.75- 40.00 

(657,318) 12.87- 35.96 

(326,880) 13.04- 43.88 

8.200.944 S12.87-S43.88 

4.706.043 S12.87-S43.88 

7.313,727 

(ItiQuarterly Financial Information (Unaudited) 

Each of the quarters includes 13 weeks except for the fourth quarter of 1989 which includes 
14 weeks. 

(Millions, except per-share data) Quarter 
— 

1990 First Second Third Fourth Total 

Gross revenue $7,103 $7,877 $7,568 S9.904 $32,452 
Cost of merchandise sold $5,211 $5,810 $5,569 $7,305 $23,895 
Net income $ 100 $ 148 S 106 S 402 $ 756 
Earnings per common and 

common equivalent share $ .50 $ .74 S .53 $ 2.01 $ 3.78 

Net income for the fourth quarter of 1990 includes a net LIFO credit of $27 million due primarily 

to adoption of an internal retail index to measure inflation. Refer to Note (F) for further informa¬ 
tion regarding this accounting change. The effect of this accounting change is not material for 
restatement of prior quarters. 

(Millions, except per-share data) Quarter 

1989 First Second Third Fourth Total 

Gross revenue $6,128 $7,088 $6,782 $9,900 $29,898 

Cost of merchandise sold $4,379 $5,154 S4.932 $7,280 $21,745 

Net income $ 94 $ 145 $ 104 S (20) $ 323 

Earnings per common and 
common equivalent share $ .47 $ .72 $ .52 $ (.10) $ 1.61 

Net income for the fourth quarter of 1989 includes a net one-time provision of $416 million for 
Kmart restructuring and other charges and a net LIFO credit of $10 million. 
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Corporate Data 

Executive Offices 

Kmart Corporation 
3100 West Big Beaver Road 
Tnov, Michigan 48084 
(313) 643-1000 

Subsidiaries 

Builders Square. Inc. 
San Antonio. Texas 

Kmart Canada Limited 
Brampton. Ontario. Canada 

PACE Membership Warehouse. Inc. 
Englewood. Colorado 

Pay Less Drug Stores Northwest. Inc. 
Wilsonville, Oregon 

The Sports Authority. Inc. 
Fort Lauderdale. Florida 

Walden Book Company. Inc. 
Stamford. Connecticut 

Annual Meeting 

The Annual Meeting will be held 
Wednesday, May 29.1991. at 9:00 a.m.. 
at Kmart International Headquarters. 
3100 West Big Beaver Road, 
Troy, Michigan. 

Transfer Agent and Registrar 

NBD Bank, N.A. 
Detroit, Michigan 

Form 10-K 

A copy of the company’s Form 10-K 
annual report for 1990 to the Securities 
and Exchange Commission will be 
furnished without charge to any 
shareholder upon written request to: 

Kmart Corporation 
Corporate Reporting Department 
3100 West Big Beaver Road 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

Dividend Reinvestment Plan 

Kmart Corporation shareholders of 
record may elect to have dividends 
automatically reinvested in additional 
shares of Kmart. They may also pur¬ 
chase shares by investing cash pay¬ 
ments of $25 to $100,000, but not more 
than a total of $100, (XX) in any one 
calendar year. There is no brokerage 
commission or charge for this service. 
Participation is entirely voluntary and 
can be easily terminated. 

Requests for additional information 
about this plan, or any questions about 
stockholdings or dividends, should be 
directed to: 

NBD Bank. N.A. 
Securities Transfer Services 
900 Tower Drive-14th Floor 
Troy, Michigan 48098 

or to: 

Kmart Corporation 
Investor Relations Department 
3100 West Big Beaver Road 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

Should you wish to communicate with 
NBD Bank about your Kmart stock¬ 
holdings or dividends by telephone, 
you may do so by calling: 

1-800-395-1770. 



Kmart Corporation 

3100 West Big Beaver Road 
Itoy, Michigan 48084 

krannert graduate school of mgmt 

CORPORATE RECORDS ASSISTANT 
PURDUE UNIVERSITY 

WEST LAFAYETTE, IN 47907 

Kmart has changed, 
t 

We’ve changed the way we 

look, feel, think and act. Were 
\ ( 

in tune with today’s customers. 

We’ve got the high quality, 

on-trend merchandise at the 
^ ' t 

low prices they expect and 

appreciate. We’re reinventing 

the business we invented-and 
% V • 

J' ' ' ' . v • . 

there’s a lot more to come. 
• • 

S’ 

Kmart. We know what our 

customers want. 
• \ 

. 
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